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Financial Calendar

Events Dates
Announcement of Interim Results 18th December. 2000
Announcement of Final Results 10th July, 2001

Book Close Dates

Interim 15th to 19th January, 2001
Final 17th to 21st September, 2001
Annual General Meeting 21st September. 2001

Payment of Dividends
Interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share 8th March, 2001
Final dividend of HK 3.5 cents per share 2nd November, 2001
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Financial S ummary
(amounts expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

The fellowing is a summary of the total assezs, total liabilities, share capital and results of the Group for the

five years ended 31st March, 200t.

1997

Financials (§ Million)
Total assets 11,447
Total liabilities 8,704
Minority interests 1,114
Capital and reserves 1,629
Share capital

(Number of shares issued — in Million) 755
Turnover 5,452
Net profit for the year 241
Per Share Basis
Earnings 29¢
Dividend 10.5¢
Net asset value {at book value) $1.96

TURNOVER
($ Millica}
648
s
10,000
8,000 7,458
A
6,000 i L
’ ] | 4,290
4,000 ; A 3'75
‘ T 1]
[ |
2,000 L ‘ |
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o
o8 ) 00 01
CAPITAL AND RESZRVES
($ Million)
2,042 f'l"?
2,000 1748 ; M ‘ :
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1 |
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'l
i L
o . i
o5 6o o1

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

1998 1999 2000 2001
10,296 5,642 4,906 4,847
8,234 3,599 2,500 2,384
315 295 364 325
1,747 1,748 2,042 2,138
1,025 1,115 1,166 1,231
7,458 11,648 4,290 3,775
195 153 275 172
22¢ 15¢ 24¢ 15¢
9¢ 5¢ 8¢ 6¢
$1.71 $1.57 $1.75 $1.74

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

{($ Million)
275
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EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND PER SHARE

(cents)
29
P
o5 24
292
20 (‘ 1
15 ! & 15 s
10.5 t (ﬂ
10 I SO 8 JI
|
5 J H | : 'H i
. AR
7 <8 9P Qo o1
[_Earnings 71 Dividend

Annual Report 2000 — 2001




Corporate %jformafion

Executive Director

CHOW Yei Ching

(Chairman and Managing Director)

LL.D. (Hon)

Honorary Consul of the State of Bahrain in Hong Kong
Officer of the Order of the British Empire

Officer in the Order of the Crown (Belgium)

Officier de 'Ordre National du Mérite (France)

Order of Sacred Treasure {Japan)

KUOK Hoi Sang (Deputy Managing Director)
FUNG Pak Kwan

FUNG Wo Shun

KAN Ka Hon

WONG Kie Ngok, Alexander

TAM Kwok Wing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
lain Leonard DALE O BE.

CHENG Ming Fun, Paul J.P.

WONG Wang Fat, Andrew O.B.E. (Hon.), J.P.

Secretary

KAN Ka Hon

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong
26th Floor, Wing On Centre,

111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

BNP Paribas

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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Solicitors

Richards Butler
Appleby Spurling & Kempe

Registered Office

Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda

Principal Place of Business

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrars

Butterfield Corporate Services Limited <@>
Rosebank Centre, 14 Bermudiana Road,

Pembroke, Bermuda

Branch Share Registrars and
Transfer Office in Hong Kong

Standard Registrars Limited
5th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
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List qf Accreditations and Bwards

The Governmeat cf the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region,

Works Bureau

Chevalier (Civil Engineering) Limited

Chevalier (Construction) Company Limized

Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Limited

Chevalie- (Envirotech) Limited

Chevalier (HK) Limited

Chevalier (Satellink) Limited

Lam Woo & Company Limited

Environmental Protection Department
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
Chevalier (HK) Limited

Fire Services Department
Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Limited

Hong Keng Office of the Telecommunications Author:ty
Chevalier (Internet} Limited

Chevalier Shop Limited

Chevalier Q-Ma:t Limited

Chevalier (Telecom) Limited

Chevalier (TelePoint) Limited

Chevalier (Satellink) Limited

Hong Kong Housing Authority

Chevalier {Consrruztion) Company Limiced
Chevalier {E & M Contracting) Limited
Chevalier (HK) Limited

Lam Woo Consiruction Limited

Rich Fortress Limited

Chevaliz - International Holdings Limited

List 1 — Port Works, Group B (On probation)
List 1 — Buildings, Group C
Electrical Installations (Group 1)
Supply and Installation of Electrical and Mechanical
Equipment for Sewage Treatment and Screening Plants
Supply and Installation of Water Treatment Plant
{On probation)
Air-conditioning and Refrigeration Instailations
(Group I}
Industrial Type Electrical Installations
[nstallation of Diesel Generating Sets
Installation of Mechanical Handling and Lifting Appliances
Lifts and Escalators
Manufacture and Erection of Mechanical Plants and
Equipment (Group 1)
Supply and [nstallation of Pumpsets and Associated Pipework
Supply and Installation of Water Treatment Plant
Broadcast Reception Installations
Burglar Alarm and Security Installations (On probation)
Supply and Installation of Audio Electronics Equipment (On
probation)
Supply and Installation of Radio Electronics Equipment (On
probation)
Supply and Installation of Video Electronics Equipment (On
probation)
List 1 — Buildings, Group C

— Waterworks, Group C

— Roads & Drainage, Group A (On probation)

Air Quality Monitoring Stations (Design, Construct,
Operate)

Builders' Lifts and Tower Working Platforms (Safety)
Ordinance — Registered Contractor

Fire Services Installation Contractor {Class 11)

Public Non-Exclusive Telecommunications Service Licence
Radio Dealers Licence (unrestricted)

Radio Dealers Licence (unrestricted)

Radio Dealers Licence (unrestricted)

Radio Dealers Licence (unrestricted)

Satellite Master Antenna Television Licence

Building Contractor (NW2), Maintenance, M1

Electrical Contractors

Air-conditioning and Ventilation Contractors
Maintenance, Emergency Generators

Maintenance M2 (probation)

Shopping Centre Improvement (probation)

Approved List A of Property Management Agents
Approved List of Property Management Agents for Public
Rental Housing Estates
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List of Accreditations and Awards

Hong Kong Housing Society
Chevalier (Construction) Company Limited
Lam Woo & Company Limited

Insurance Authority
Chevalier Insurance Company Limited

The Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau
Chevalier Insurance Company Limited

Professional Insurance Brokers Association Limited
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Limited

Security and Guarding Services Industry Authority
Chevalier (HK) Limited

Chevalier (Satellink) Limited

Companies Registry — Money Lenders Section
Chevalier MLD Leasing Company Limited

Wealth Chain Limited

Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Limited

International Air Transport Association
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Limited

AOQC Moody International Registration Ltd.
Chevalier Chrysler Inc.
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

Chevalier (Civil Engineering) Limited

Chevalier (Construction) Company Limited

Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Limited

Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited

Chevalier {HK) Limited

Lam Woo & Company Limited

Lam Woo Construction Limited

Singapore Productivity and Standards Board
Chevalier Singapore Holdings Limited
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Building Contractor (contract of any value)
Approved List of Local Consractor

General Insurance Licence

Member

Member

Security Company Licence (Type 1}
Security Company Licence [ Type IlI)

Money Lenders Licence
Money Lenders Licence

Membership Certificate

Certificate of Accreditation

1SO 9002
Vehicle Sales, Service and Parts

ISO9002 CC1438

Construction and maintenance of civil engineering works
1SO9002 CC140

Construction of building

[SO%002 CC270

Building activities to keep, restore or improve the facilities
of buildings and surroundings

1SO9002 CC393

Electrical & electrical associated services installation for
building construction

1SO9001 CC792

Design, supply & installation of water and wastewater
treatment facilities

1SO%001 CC242

Lift & escalator system design, supply, installation and
maintenance

1SO9001 CC458

System design, supply, installation and maintenance of
heating, ventilation & air-conditioning systems in Hong
Kong

1SO9002 CC790

Public work include building, civil engineering, construction
and maintenance

[SO9002 CC259

Building activities to keep, vestore or improve the {acilities
of buildings and surroundings

1SO9001 Certification
Designs, installation and servicing of Lifts and Escalators
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Business Chart
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Chairman’s Statement

Overview

The previous year ended 31st March, 2000 saw a

pre-tax profit of HK$379 million including the

year ended 31st March, 2001 recorded a pre-tax

FEmoraei 2%,

wxle T nta LS

profit of HK$234 million, representing a 23%

NPV

A s rin Al

exceptional profit of HK$75 million The current .}g
BoA
2

reduction after deducting the exceptional profit

last year. Turnover was down by 129% reflecting

tighter commercial conditions.

Dividend
The Board of Directors recommends the payment

of a final dividend of HK3.5 cents (2000 HK5

cents, per share payable to shareholders whose

names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Friday, 21st September, 2001. This,
together with the interim dividend of HK2.5 cents

(2000: HK 3 cents) per share paid during the year, Dr CHOW Yei Ching LLD. (Hon)
Honorary Consul of the State of Bahrain in Hong Kong
represents a dividend distribution of HK6 cents  Officer of the Order of the British Empire
Officer in the Order of the Crown (Belgium)
X . I o
(2000 HK8 cents) per share fOT the year Cﬂded Officier de 'Ordre Narional du Mérite (France)

Order of Sacred Treasure (Japan)
31st March, 2001,

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the
dividend warrants will be paid on or about Friday, 2nd November, 2001 in cash, with
sharehlolders being given the opticn to receive shares of HK$0.25 each ("New Shares”) in the
Company in lieu of cash in respect of part or all of such dividend (“Scrip Dividend Scheme").
The number of New Shares will be calculated on the basis of the average of the closing prices
per share of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”)
for the five consecutive trading days from Monday, 17th September, 2001 to Friday, 21st
September, 2001, less a discount of 5%. A circular giving full details of the Scrip Dividend
Scheme and a form of election will be sent to shareholders on or around Wednesday, 10th
October, 2001. The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Stock Exchange granting

the listing of and permission to deat in the New Shares to be issued.

Chevalier Internaiional Holdings Limited Annual Report 2000 — 2001




Chairman’s Statement

Review of Operations

THE COMPANY
Building Services

The lifts and escalators and other building
services divisions were affected by the sluggish
property market in Hong Kong. Even though
the housing affordability improved after the fall
in prices over the past few years and the
significant rate cuts in the past six months, the
property market remained comparatively slow
because of abundant supply and lack of
confidence. As a result, the building services
market has shrunk and become more

competitive. Nevertheless, the Lifts and

1 E s EIN PR W 55
o i Aluminium and Curtain Wall project for Cyberport Development C@D
-
F Escalators Division has secured a number of

contracts in Hong Kong from major developers and
Hong Kong Housing Authority ("HKHA").
Aluminium and Curtain Wall Division also secured
contracts for Cyberport Development, the
Northern Site Podium at the Hong Kong Station
Z of the Airport Express and KCRC Service

Lift and Escalator, Mechanical, Electrical and Fire Protection Department at Hung Hom Bay during the year.
Installation for Macau Tower Entertainment Centre

=

The Group acquired 45% interest in

Preussag Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Kong
Limited ("PPRHK") and PPRHK debt for a

total consideration of HK$21,248,000 from
Chevalier Construction Holdings Limited in
August 2000. PPRHK introduced the pipe
rehabilitation technology in Hong Kong
since 1998 and has successfully completed
a number of trial jobs for various government

authorities.

s i & i b
Relining of Asbestos Cement Fresh Watermain by Process Phoenix
Structural Liner at Jockey Club Road
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Chairman’s Statement

Enviroinmental Business

S . 7 t p 1 Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited currently
’ : AN ‘ operates 5 air quality monitoring stations
in Hong Kong. In August 2000, our joint
venture company, Chevalier Enviro
Services, Inc. commenced its medical
waste treatment operation in Manila. The
company is making use of the advanced
and environmentally safe SANITEC
Microwave Disinfection System. The
technology was also introduced to
Vietnam by the end of last year. Moreover,
work on Tai Po Water Treatment Plant
project is progressing smoothly and is
planned for completion at the end of
2002.

Properiy Investment and Property Managemeni

Property market in Shanghai recovered tremendously in last year. The occupancy rate of Chevalier
Place, the Group’s luxury residential property in Shanghai, has increased to approximately 90% and
rental income derived thereon has increased significantly. In Hong Kong, during the year, rental
revenue of approximately HK$19 million was received from the investment properties.

The Group's property management division secured contracts from the HKHA for the provision of
management services for residential units, shopping arcades, carparks and other communal facilities.
At present, the Group manages 16 estates and buildings with a portfolio of approximately 20 million
square feet.

Insurarce

Despite the increasing competition, the Group's insurance division recorded a significant improvement
in both turnover and premium income in last year. As at 31st March, 2001, its gross premium portfolio
significantly increased by 6 times to approximately HK$136 million compared to same period last
year. Business growth is maintained in the first quarter of the current financial year.

Hotel [iivestment

Overall perfcrmance of the Group's
two hotels in the Xinyang and
Jiujiang of Mainland China shewed
modest increase in room rates with
occupancy rate improved to about
70%. Construction works of tae
third hotel project in Dongguan has
recently been completed and the
grand opening will be held very
soon.
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Chairman’s Statement

Performance of the hotel business in Canada, the "Rosedale on Robson Suite Hotel”, is in line with

expectations and provided a stable stream of revenue to the Group during the year under review.

Ouersms Business

In April of this year, Chevalier Chrysler Inc.,
which celebrated its 10th anniversary last
year, was granted 1SO 9002 certification for

quality assurance in the scope of vehicle

sales, service and parts. In addition,

A

=N

Honda dealership won Quality Dealer
Award for the year of 2001 due to its

remarkable sales volume and achievements in

-

customer satisfaction. Overall performance of car

dealership business in last year improved because of

the outstanding service quality and continued

Outstanding performance in the overseas dealership of

economic growth in North America. :
automobiles

Subsequent Events

In April 2001, the Group acquired 4,500,000 shares in NordiTube Technolcgies AB ("NordiTube"),
representing 19% interest in NordiTube's issued share capital. The total investment in NordiTube
amounted to approximately HK$5,600,000. NordiTube is a company listed on the Stockholm Stock
Exchange and is principally engaged in the design and construction for rehabilitating water-supply
system, gas-supply system and sewers. At present, the Group together with PRS Rohrsanierung GmbH
("PRS"), the Group's joint venture partner in pipe rehabilitation business, own 19% and 32% equity
of NordiTube respectively and have become the major shareholders of NordiTube.

In June 2001, the Company invested further in PRS by subscribing 6,482 000 shares at a consideration
of approximately HK$39 million, representing 44% of enlarged share capital of PRS. Currently, PRS
owns 30% interest in PPRHK.

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED (“GiTL")

During the year, CiTL Group's results were affected by the continued reductions in capital spending
of the small and medium enterprises and the sluggish local economy. [ts turnover dropped to HK$ 1,055
million. Profit attributable to shareholders reduced to HK$7.76 million. Earnings per share decreased
to HKO.%4 cent.

Annual Report 2000 — 2001 Chevalier International Holdings Limited




Chairman’s Statement

During the year, the computer market was
adversely affected by rapid changes in
technology and global production capacity.
Telecommunication market, on the other
hand, benefited from the development of
information technology and the improved

quality of telecommunication products and

services. Revenue generated from the mobile

phone retail business and related valued-

added services continued to grow. However,
the market will become more difficult

because of the slowdown in domestic demand

Chevalier (OA) Limited announced the launch of Toshiba e-Studio digital
copiers and promotion of other Toshiba products

and delay in the introduction of new
technology. Overall performance of Q-Mart
Shops was satisfactory despite lesses still incurred due to the write-offs of the initial setup costs and

depreciation charges. Currently, CiTL Group operates a total of 14 Q-Mart Shops in varicus locations.

In mid-2000, Chevalier (Network Solutions) Limited
was established to provide one-szop IT solutions and
services. As at 31st March, 2001, a major contract
includes the fibre network and telephone system
installation and maintenance which was awarded by
Television Broadcasts Limited with a contract value of

approximately HK$20 million.

During the year, the Internet Division has discontinued

the Internet dial-up services ard has shifted its focus Chevalier (Network Solutions) Limired exhibited as
) e-frastructure solution provider in [T Expo 2000

to brecadband services, VPN connectivity and [P

security to corporate users. Subsequent to the year-end, CiTL Group disposed of all interest in the

paging services.

CiTL Group's business in Thailand continued to maintain a stable growth. In September last year,
Cheval:er iTech Thai Limited (formerly known as Chevalier OA (Thailand) Limited) received two
awards namely the "Outstanding Solution Sales” and "Best Report Award (Qutstanding Analysis)” in
marketing of office equipment in Thailand. Recently, the Thailand operation has undergone corporate
restructuring so as to streamline CiTL Croup's financial resources in Thailand and strengthen its

capital base.

Chevalier Internationsl Holdings Limited Annual Report 2000 — 2001




Chairman’s Statement

Looking forward, the business outlook of CiTL will be extremely difficult. This is because consumer
spending remains low due to global economic downturn and keen competition continues due to
excessive supply of merchandise and rapid change in technology. However, the negative impact may
gradually be offset by the long-term benefit to Hong Kong after the entry of China to World Trade
Organization. CiTL has re-aligned its business plan in order to improve its competitiveness and face

the new challenge.

CHEVALIER CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED (“CCHL")
CCHL Group's turnover for the year ended 31st

- March, 2001 decreased to HK$1,226 million.
) Loss for the year amounted to HK$27.6 million
X and loss per share was HK11.66 cents. The

B construction industry in Hong Kong has been
affected by the prolonged slowdown in the
property market. The unsatisfactory performance
of CCHL was mainly due to the shortage of new
jobs and delay in the progress of certain projects
in the first half of the year.

The Professional Complex Development at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

During the year, CCHL Group was awarded
a contract valued at HK$148 million for the
building of The Professional Complex
Development at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. As at 31st March,
2001, the value of outstanding construction
works and civil engineering works amounted
to HK$606 million and HK$303 million

respectively.

Development at Area 137, Stage 2

After the significant rate cuts during the first half of 2001 and the government’s commitment to
stabilize the property prices, the market sentiment has improved gradually. The construction industry
in the long run will also be affected and business opportunities for CCHL is expected to increase. In
the meantime, CCHL will continue to strengthen its management team and implement stringent cost

control measures.

Annual Report 2000 — 2001 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

CHEVALIER SINGAPORE HOLDINGS LIMITED (“CSHL")

Despite the continuing poor sentiment in the construction sector in Singapore, CSHL, a 71.1%
subsidiary company of the Group, has managed to perform well during financial year ended 31st
March, 2001. Its post-tax profit reported a 17.8% growth to $$5.6 million for the year as compared
with last year regardless the turnover tell 34% to S$35.9 million for the year ended 31st March, 2001.
The profitability is principally attributable to better collections resulting in a net write-back of provision
on doubtful accounts and repayment of al- bank loans and overdrafts resulting in significant reduction

of interest expenses.

CSH'. has noted the Singapore government's continuing expenditure in the building construction
sector, as a result of which institutional building and infrastructure development projects have increased.
In line with the growth in this public sector, CSHL has secured bulk orders from the Land Transport
Authority for the installation of lifts in all existing MRT stations, and has also continued to secure lift

installation srojects for schools, institutions of higher learning, community clubs and libraries.

Prospacts

The economies of the Japan and US are

showing signs of slowdown — siow

consumer spending, stagnant

manufacturing and lack of confidence are

the signs. The US Government has slashed
interest rate 6 times in the first half of this
year. With continued reductions in capital

spending, it is anticipated that signs of

improvement will not emerge until end of

l" T L S St et o

this year or Parly next year Dr Chow, two officiating guests and the directors toast to the 30th anniversary
- ‘ ' of Chevalier

At the recent session of the National People’s Congress, China formulated its Tenth Five-Year Plan. [t is
anticipated that the economy of th= Mainland will grow at an average of seven per cent over the next five
years. The Mainland's imminent entry to the World Trade Organization and the acceleration of the
development of Western China will speed up its economic reforms and will offer tremendous business
opporiunities to both Hong Kong and overseas enterprises. Being the gateway to China and an international
business centre, Hong Kong will undoubtedly be benefited from these opportunities. Chevalier owns

network of ten representative offices in the Mainland gives the Group access and advantage.
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Chairman’s Statement

With the global economy expected to slow and the US in increasing risk of falling into recession,
economic growth in Hong Kong will decelerate. It will be impossible for Hong Kong to maintain last
year's growth. The performance of the economy in the rest of the year will greatly depend on the
validity of the measures taken by the US Government to stimulate its economy. Although the impact
of rate cuts may not materialize in the near future, such reduction should help revive domestic demand
particularly investment. Therefore, the Group expects that the economy will gradually improve towards

the end of this vear or early next year.

With stiff market competition and the decrease in the supply of private and public housing, it is
envisaged that contribution from the building services and construction will be reduced in the coming
year. Nevertheless, the Group's determination to diversify its business will bring stability in revenue
and operational flexibility to the Group and enhance its competitive status to the changes of the
volatile global marketplace. Looking ahead, the Group is committed tc continue to explore

opportunities and avenues to grow its business and enhance the value to its shareholders.

Shareholders and Staff

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend our gratitudes to our shareholders for

their support and to our staff for their dedication and contribution over the past year.

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 10th July, 2001
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Financial Review

As at 31st March, 2001, the Group's total net asset amounted to approximately HK$2,138,181,000
(2000: HK$2,042,313,000), an increase of HK$95,868,000 or 4.7% when compared with 2000.

Total debt to equity ratio was 46.47% (2000: 49.06%) and net debt to equity ratio was 10.54% (2000:
19.34%), which are expressed as a percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net borrowings

respectively, aver the total net asset of HK$2,138,181,000 (2000: HK$2,042,313,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Group's bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$993,543,000
(2000: HK$1,001,999,000). Cash and deposit at bank including pledged deposits amounted to
HK$768,242,000 (2000: HK$607,033,000) and net borrowings amounted to HK$255,301,000 (2000:
HK$394,966,000). The Group's bank and other borrowings are wholly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. Most of the borrowings are carrying floating interest rates based on Hong Kong Interbank
Offering Rates, with a small portions based on Prime Rate. Among those floating rate loans,

HK$400,000,000 are hedged to fixed rates through Interest Rate Swap Agreements.

Finance costs for the year amcunted to HK$83,795,000 (2000: HK$51,804,000), an increase of
HK$31,991,000 as compared with 20C0.

The Company has provided guarantees in respect of loan facilities granted to subsidiaries and associates
amounting to HK$889,302,000 (2000. HK$417,978,000) and nil (2000: HK$102,500,000)

respectively.

The Group zdopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management. To achieve better
risk control and minimise cost of funds, the Group's treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly dencminated in Hong Kong or US dollars. The Group's liquidity
and financing requirements-are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of

bank loans, the Group will consider new financing while maintaining an appropriate leve! of gearing.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2000 — 2001




Schedule of the quor Qquverries

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

(A) Held as Investment Properties/Properties for Own Use

Location

Hong Kong

Ground Floor of Block A,
East Sun Industrial Centre,
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

Chevalier Warehouse Building,
1 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen,
Fanling, New Territories

Chevalier Engineering Service Centre

i

21 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay

Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor,
19th to 23rd Floors and
one-third interest in 201 carparks
of Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

9 Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout
No. 20, Shek O
Singapore

Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road,
Singapore 349481

The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road,
Singapore 349473

Annual Report 2000 — 2001

Usage

Industrial

Industrial

Industrial

Office
premises
and car
parking space

Residential

Residential

Industrial

Industrial

Approximate
gross
floor area

sq.ft.

16,000

118,300

177,500

174,600

9,500

5,300

80,000

17,000

Lease
term

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Long

Long

Freehold

Freehold

Group's
interest
%

100

100

100

100

100

100

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Schedulz f the Major Trgverties

|

|

| Approximate

| gross Lease Group's

i Location Usage floor area term interest

| sq.ft. %
Canada

| 4334-4340 Kingston Road, Office, workshop 20,200 Freehold 100

1‘ Ontario, MIF 2M8 and parking space

l for automobile dealership

i ,

| &88 Hamilton Street, Hotel 86,000 Freehold 39.8

Vancouver, B. C.

14535-74583, Yonge Street, (Office, workshop 25,000 Freehold 100
Aurora, Ontario and parking space

for automobile dealership

® ) 20 Nugget Avenue, Scarborough, Office, workshop 22,460 Freehold 100
? Ontario and parking space
i for truck

United States of America

430 East Grand Avenue, Irndustrial/Warehouse 38,000 Freehold 100
South San Francisco, CA

The People’s Republic of China

355 Minquan Road, Hotel 129,000 Medium 70

Xinyang City, Henan Province

Units 4, 5, 6 and 7 of 18th Floor, Office premises 7,200 Medium 50.4
Dongshan Plaza, Guangzhou,

: Guangdong Province

! Thailand

|

|

| No. 54¢ Bamrungmuang Road, Office premises 21,300 Freehold 50.4
| Debsirin Sub-district, and showroom

Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis
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Schedule of the Major Properties

(B) Properties under Development

Estimated
floor area
Stage of Expected date after  Group's
Location completion  of completion  Usage Site area  completion  interest
s ft. sq.ft. %
The People’s Republic of China
Lots H-1-1 and H-1-2, Vacant site Upon the Residential 104,880 524,500 50
Dongguan City Central available and
of land from commercial
the Government
of the PRC
Sha Long Road, Sha Tong Village, Construction Late 2001 Hotel 38,277 123,495 100
Houjie Town, Dongguan City in progess
(C) Property for Sale
Approximate
gross Lease Group's
Location floor area term Interest
sq. ft. %
The People’s Republic of China
Chevalier Place, 370,000 Long 80
Lot No. 48, 18 Jiefang,
Xuhui District,
Shanghai
(D) Properties Interests Acquired in the PRC
Approximate
gross Lease Group
Location Usage floor area term interest
sq.ft. %
Certain property interests comprising office 49 923 Long 45.2

various levels in Onward Science &
Trade Centre, 2 Donghuan South Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Annual Report 2000 — 2001
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2001.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
marketing, installation and maintenance of lifts, escalators, air-conditioning systems, electrical and mechanical
systers, power equipment and industrial equipment; environmental engineering; supply and installation of
building materials and equipment; salz, servicing and leasing of automobiles,; property development and
investment; a wide range of voice and data communication equipment and services; system integrated IT

solutions; sale and servicing of business mach:nes and household products.

The Group's turnover and contribution to profit from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2001 analysed

by business segment and geographical area are set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriat:ons

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2001 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 34. An interim dividend of HK2.5 cents was paid on Thursday, 8th March, 2001 with an option to
elect for shares of HK$0.25 each in the Company in lieu of cash. The Directors now recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK3.5 cents per share with an option to elect for shares of the Company.

Share Capital

Movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the share option scheme to subscribe for shares in the Company are set out in note 28 to the

financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves during the y=ar are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Investment Properties

Movements ir investment properties during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

Financial Summary

A financial summary of the Group is shown on page 2.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group's turnover and purchases of the year attributable to the Group's five largest customers and suppliers
respectively were less than 30%. Except for the contracts with CCHL Group as disclosed more fully in the
section “Connected Transactions” below, none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (whom to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) has any interest in

the Group's five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

Properties

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31st March, 2001 are set out cn pages 17 to 19.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

The Group employed approximately 4,700 full time staff as at 31st March, 2001. The remuneration policy is
reviewed periodically according to the nature of their jobs, market trend, company performance and individual
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement
schemes and employee share option scheme. Total staff costs amounted to HK$536 million for the year ended
31st March, 2001.

Donations

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$2,737,000 to charitable bodies and HK$491,000 to other

communities.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions

against such rights under the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company by the Company or any of its

subsidiaries during the year.
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" | Directors
ﬁ ‘ The Directors who held office during the veac and up to the date of this report were:
i ‘
s Executive Directors
E Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman and Managing Director)
E Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Deputy Managing Director)
2 j Mr FUNG Pzk Kwan
Mr FUNG Wo Shun i
b= ; Mr KAN Ka Hen
= | Mr WONG Kie Ngok, Alexander
H | Mr TAM Kwok Wing
Independent Non-Executive Directors
| Mr lain Leonard DALE
: Mr CHENG Ming Fun, Paul
! Mr WONG Wang Fat, Andrew
|
! In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, Messrs KUOK Hoi Sang, FUNG Pak Kwan and KAN Ka Hon
% shall retire from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
j election. The Independent Non-Exzcutive Directors are subject to the same retirement requirements as the
i Executive Directors.
= Directors’ Interests in Contracts
3 Messrs CHOW Yei Ching, KUOK Hoi Sang, FUNG Pak Kwan, FUNG Wo Shun, KAN Ka Hon, WONG Kie
E i Ngok, Alexander and TAM Kwok Wing are interested in certain contracts in that they are the Directors and/or
b | have beneficial interests in CiTL and/or CCHL. Details of these contracts are more fully disclosed in the
E ‘ section "Connected Transactions” below.
e |
o ! Save as aforementioned, no other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
: ! a party and in which a director had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
= | year.
= 1
- w Direciors' Interests in Competing Businass
:“ ; None of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting a competing business to the Group.
fj |
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Connected Transactions

The Group has from time to time conducted transactions with CCHL and CiTL which are the “connected
persons’ for the purposes of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities ("the Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange. The Stock Exchange granted waivers on 31st January, 1996 and 2nd April, 1997 to the Company
from strict compliance with the requirements stipulated in Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules on connected
transactions. Pursuant to the waivers, details of the following connected transactions which have been entered
into between certain subsidiaries of CCHL, CiTL and the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business
are not required to be disclosed by press notice and/or circular nor is the Companv required to obtain prior

independent shareholders’ approval on each occasion when they arise:

1. An agreement was made between CCHL and the Company whereby CCHL Group as main contractor
may source from time to time supply of lifts and escalators, air-conditioning systems, electrical and
mechanical systems, building materials and equipment and related installation services from the various
subsidiaries of the Company as sub-contractor. The Group has entered into the following connected

transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules:

Estimated Interest
contract  attributable <@@
Main contractor Nature of transaction Sub-contractor value to the Group °
HKS %
Chevalier Construction Supply and installation of Chevalier (Building 3,640,000 100
(Hong Kong) Limited building materials Supplies & Engineering)
{("CCHK") Limited
CCHK Electrical installation Chevalier (HK) 2,323,000 100
Limited ("CHK")
Chevalier (Construction)  Electrical installation CHK 38,890,000 100
Company Limited
("CCCL)
CCCL Supply and installation of Chevalier (Aluminium 569,000 100
building materials Engineering) Limited

Sales and progress receipts during the year ended 31st March, 2001 in respect of the above contract
amounted to approximately HK$4,158,000.

2. The Company had entered into an administrative service agreement with CCHL under which the Group
provided accounting, treasury, electronic data processing, company secretarial and personnel management
services to CCHL Group at a management fee calculated based on 0.3% of CCHL Group's annual turnover.
The management fee paid by CCHL to the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2001 amounted
to HK$3,679,000.
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Connected fransactions (continued’

3. The following properties were leased to CiTL Group and CCHL Group by the wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Company at commercial rates:

Landlord Renting of property (usage) Tenant

Union Pearl Development Limited  Portion of Chevalier Commercial CiTL Group
Centre {office) CCHL Group

Winfield Development Limited Portion of Chevalier Warehouse GiTL Group
Building (warehouse) CCHL Group

Peak Gain Limited Portion of Chevalier Engineering CiTL Group
Service Centre CCHL Group
{(office/warehouse)

Futex Development Limited

Regent Villa (resort) CiTL Group
CCHL Group

Oriental Sharp Limited Portion of Charming Garden (shop) CiTL Group

Union Mark Development Limited Portion of Yin Hai Commercial CiTL Group
Building (office)
Well Stamp Limited Portion of Jin Du Mansion (office)  CiTL Group

Well Stamp Limited Portion of Dongshan Plaza (office)  CiTL Group

Rental for

the year
HKS

1,379,000
1,994,000

95,000
286,000

7,943,000
395,000
160,000

160,000

104,000

118,000

85,000

33,000

During the vear, rentals amounting to approximately HK$9,917,000 and HK$2,835,000 were paid to the

Croup by CiTL CGroup and CCHL Greoup respectively.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company confirm that the aforesaid connected transactions

conducted by the Group during the year ended 31st March, 2001 were:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Croup’s business;

{(ii) on normal commercial terms cr on terms no less favourable than terms available to/from independent

third parties;
(iii) fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

(iv) within the relevant amounts as stipulated under the relevant waivers.

Chevalier Internet.onal Holdings Limited
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Connected Transactions (continued)

4. In August 2000, the Group entered into an agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHL to
purchase its 45% interest in PPRHK and debt at a total consideration of HK$21,248,000 (“the Szle and
Purchase Agreement”). As the Company is the controlling shareholder of CCHL, the Sale and Purchase
Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transaction

was completed in October 2000.

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Options

As at 31st March, 2001, the interests of the Directors in the share capital and options of the Company and its
associated corporations within the meaning of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (“the SDI
Ordinance”) which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Madel Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies or which are required pursuant to Section 29 of

the SDI Ordinance to be entered in the register referred to therein are as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company
(i) Shares
Number of ordinary shares @
Personal Family
Directors interest interest Total
CHOW Yei Ching 615,445,993* — 615,445,993
KUOK Hoi Sang 491,083 — 491,083
FUNG Pak Kwan 456,450 — 456,450
KAN Ka Hon 145,200 — 145,200
TAM Kwok Wing 845,078 162,365 1,007,443
lain Leonard DALE 42,016 — 42,016

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 615,445,993 shares in the Company, representing in aggregate approximately
50% of the issued share capital of the Company. These shares duplicated in the paragraph beaded "Substantial Shareholder”

below.
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Directors' Interests in Shares and Options (continued)

(a) Interests in the Company {continued)

(it} Share aptions

-’gm rt of the Directors

Number Number

Price of shares of shares

per share  issued upon  to be issued

Consideration tobe  exercise of upon exercise

paid for  paid upon options of the

Period during which options exercise during remaining

Directors Date granted options are exercisable granted  of options the year options
HKS HKS

CHOW Yei Ching 04/02/1598 03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.5376 — 18,000,000

17/12/1599 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 1 '0.4880 — 8,450,000

KUOK Hoi Sang 04/02/1598 03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.5376 — 10,000,000

17/12/1599 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 1 0.4880 — 5,350,000

FUING Pak Kwan 04/02/1398 03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.5376 — 8,000,000

17/12/1399 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 1 0.4880 — 5,350,000

FUNG Wo Shun 04/02/1398 02/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.5376 — 2,200,000

KAN Ka Hon 04/02/1598 04/09/1998 - 03/09/2001 1 0.5376 — 2,200,000

17/12/1599 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 1 0.4880 — 5,000,000

WONCG Kie Ngok, 04/02/1598 04/09/1998 - 03/09/2001 1 0.5376 — 1,200,000

A]exavnder 17/12/1599 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 1 0.4880 — 5,000,000

TAM Kwok Wing 04/02/1598 04/09/1998 - 03/09/2001 1 0.5376 — 1,700,000

17/12/1599 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 | 0.4880 — 5,000,000

Details of the share options arz set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

Chevalizr Internaiional Holdings Limited

Arnnual Report 2000 — 2001




‘Repor‘t of the Directors

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Options {continued)

(b) Interests in Associated Corporations

(i)  Shares
Number of ordinary shares
Associated Personal Corporate Family
Directors corporations interest interest interest Total
CHOW Yei Ching CiTL 34,079,270 431,618,666* — 465 697,936
CCHL 41,036,489 87,165, 444" — 128,201,933
CSHL 4,375,000 80,000,000 — 84,375,000
KUOK Hoi Sang GCiTL 12,000,000 — — 12,000,000
CCHL 1,326,437 — — 1,326,437
FUNG Pak Kwan GiTL 12,900,000 — — 12,900,000
FUNG Wo Shun CiTL 300,000 — — 300,000
CCHL 295,600 — — 295,600
KAN Ka Hon CiTL 2,256,000 — — 2,256,000
TAM Kwok Wing GiTL 2,000,000 — 52,000 2,052,000
CCHL 625,796 — 7,142 632,938

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching bad notified CiTL, CCHL and CSHL that be was deemed to be interested in 431,618,666 shares in
CiTL, 87,165,444 shares in CCHL and 80,000,000 shares in CSHL under the SDI Ordinance as the said shares were held
by the Company in which Dr Chow beneficially owned 615,445,993 shares, representing 11 aggregate approximately 50%

of the issued share capital of the Company.
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i in Shares ernd Opsicas (continued)

ssociated Corporations (continued)

Jions
~
~ -
~ Number of Number of
Price per shares  shares to be
share  issued upon issued upon
Consideration to be exercise exercise
paid for  paid upon of options of the
Associated Date Period during which options exercise during remaining
Directors corporations granted options are exercisable granted  of options the year options
HK$ HKS
CHOW Yei Ching GiTL 04/021968  03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.3376 — 14,000,000
17/12/195¢ 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 1 0.4640 — 7,000,000
CCHL 04/92,192¢  03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.3248 — 4,400,000
KUOGK Hoi Sang GTL 04/02,1998  03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.3376 — 4,300,000
17/12/19%¢  30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 1 0.4640 — 5,000,000
CCHL 04/02,199%  03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.3248 — 4,000,000
FUNG Pak Kwan GiTL 04/02/199%  03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 1 0.3376 — 3,000,000
177121999 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 i 0.4640 — 6,550,000
FUNG Wo Shun GiTL 04/0271996  03/09/1998 - 02/09/2001 | 0.3376 — 2,300,000
KaXN Kz Hon GTL 17/12/1399  30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 [ 0.4640 — 5,000,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2001, none of the Directors of the Company nor their spouses or
children or siep children under the age of 18 years had or were deemed pursuant to Section 28 of the SDI
Ordinance or under Section 31 or Part 1 of the Schedule to the SDI Ordinance to have any interest in the

securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SDI Ordinance).

Directors’ Seivice Contracts
No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensatior).

Management Contracts

Apart from the management agreement entered into with CCHL as mentioned above, no other contracts of
signif:cance concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business

of the Company or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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Directors' Biographies
Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Chairman and Managing Director, aged 63, is the founder of the Chevalier Group and
the Chairman of CiTL, CCHL, both of which are publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, and the Chairman
of CSHL, a publicly listed company in Singapore. He is also a Non-Executive Director of Van Shung Chong
Holdings Limited, United Chinese Bank Limited, Television Broadcasts Limited and Shaw Brothers (Hong
Kong) Limited. In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Doctor Degree in Business Administration

by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and with an Honorary University Fellowship by The University of
Hong Kong. In 1996 and 1997, he was appointed an Honorary Member of the Board of Directors by Nanjing
University and was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University of Hong Kong
respectively. Dr Chow also serves actively on a number of educational advisory committees and gives substantial
support in areas of researches and developments to the aforementioned two Universities in Hong Kong and
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is also an Honorary Professor to Zhejiang University
and Sichuan Union University of the PRC. Dr Chow’s enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his
appointment in 1996 as a Member of The Selection Committee for the First Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and as a Member of the Board of Directors of The Community Chest in Hong
Kong in 1995. He was also appointed early this year as the Honorary Consul of the State of Bahrain in Hong
Kong. He also actively participates in various professional bodies and associations on fraternal and Chinese
affairs. To name a few, he is a Member of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference (Shanghai),
the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and he is also the Chairman of the National Taiwan University-
HK Alumni Association. In recognition of his contributions to local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow has
been awarded with the honorable decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan, namely, Officer of the
Most Excellent Order of the British Empire, Officer in the Order of the Crown, Officier de 'Ordre National du
Mérite and The Order of the Sacred Treasure, Gold Rays with Rosette respectively.

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang, Deputy Managing Director, aged 51, joined the Chevalier Group in 1972 and is a
Director of CiTL, CSHL and the Vice Chairman of CCHL. He is also the President of The Lift and Escalator
Contractors Association in Hong Kong, rhe Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong — China Branch of The
International Association of Elevator Engineers and a Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong.
He was appointed as member of Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference, Guangzhou. Mr Kuok
has extensive experience in business development and is responsible for the strategic planning and management
of the operations of lifts and escalators, building construction, building materials and supplies, alurminium
works, electrical and mechanical services, civil engineering, property development as well as investment projects

of the Group.
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Directors’ Biograplies (continuzd)
Executive Directors {continued)

Mr FUNG Pak Kwan, Director, aged 49, joined the Chevalier Group in 1974 and is the Managing Director of
CiTL and a Director of CSHL. He was appointed as executive member of the Guangdong Federation of Industry
& Commerce and Guangdong Chamber of Commerce. Mr Fung is responsible for the Chevalier Group's strategic
planning and management of operatioas of subsidiaries which focus on a wide range of voice and data
communication equipment and services, system integrated IT solutions as well as the sale and distribution of
mobile phones, business machines, computear systems and equipment, telephone systems and relevant after-
sales services. H= also actively involves in the planning of property investment and development projects,

environmental enginesring, automobile and hotel business in North America of the Group.

Mr FUNG Wo Shun, Director, aged 53, joined the Chevalier Group in 1970 and is a Director of CiTL. Mr
Fung takes an active role in the management of the insurance business, finance and leasing business as well as
business development of the Group.

Mr KAN Ka Hon, Director and Company Secretary, aged 50, joined the Chevalier Group in 1986 and is a
Director and Company Secretary of CiTL and the Company Secretary of CCHL. He is also a Non-Executive
Directoc of Victory City Internaticnal Holdings Limited. He is responsible for management of the Chevalier
Group's accounting and treasury, corporate finance, company secretarial and electronic data processing activities.
Mr Kan holds a Bachelor Degree in Science from The University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member of Hong Kong Society of Accountants.

Mr WONG Kie Ngok, Alexander, Director, aged 72, joined the Chevalier Group in 1989 and is a Director of
CCHL. He is responsible for the internal audit and project development of the Chevalier Group. Mr Wong is
a member of The Australian Society of Cerritied Public Accountants, a fellow member of The Hong Kong

Society of Accountants and a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr TAM Kwok Wing, Director, aged 40, joined the Chevalier Group in 1986 and is a Director of CCHL.
Apart from his participation in running the insurance underwriting business together with property development
and property management divisions, he is also responsible for legal affairs, general administration, human
resources managament, public relations and travel agency business of the Chevalier Group. Mr Tam holds a
Bachelor Degree in Laws from the Beijing University of the PRC, a Master of Arts Degree from the City
University of Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytecknic University. He is also fellow members of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the U.K. and the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.

Presently, he zlsc serves as an Honorary Secretary of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau.

Chevalier lnternational Holdirgs L'mited
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr lain Leonard DALE, aged 61, was appointed to the Board in 1992, Mr Dale is the Chairman of Henderson
TR Pacific Investment Trust plc, Bowman Power Ltd and an Ambassador for British Business appointed by the
U.K. Foreign and Commonwealth Office. He also chairs the British Council’s BOND scheme, which places
overseas business people in the UK. industry. He was previously the Chairman of Dale Electric International
plc and a Director of Vislink plc and chaired both the South East Asian Trade Advisory Group and the Southern
Asian Advisory Group for the British Government. He is a former member of British Overseas Trade Board

(BOTB).

Mr CHENG Ming Fun, Paul, aged 64, was appointed to the Board in 1998. Mr Cheng is a founding partner of
China Key Consultants Ltd. A former Legislative Councillor, he was also the Chairman of Inchcape Pacific
Limited and N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited. He holds a number of non-executive directorships
with listed companies in both Hong Kong and the U.K. An adjunct professor of Management of Organizations
and a member of the Court at The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr WONG Wang Fat, Andrew, aged 57, was appointed to the Board in 1999. Mr Wong has been an elected
member of the Legislative Council since 1985. He has been lecturing at The Chinese University of Hong
Kong since 1970 and is currently Honorary Professor of Government and Public Administration. He is also a
Non-Executive Director of New Island Printing Holdings Limited and an Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Corrugated Paper Manufacturers Association. Mr Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
literature from The University of Hong Kong and a Master of Public Administration degree from the Syracuse
University, U.S.A.

Retirement Schemes

From tst April, 2000 to 30th November, 2000, the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating
companies in the Chevalier Group Staff Provident Fund Scheme (“the Scheme") as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance which is a defined contribution retirement scheme for its eligible employees.
Certain of the Company's overseas subsidiaries contribute to their local government's central pension plans for
their employees. Contributions to these schemes are made by both the employers and the employees at the

rate of 3.9% to 16% on the employees’ income.

There has been a change in the pension scheme policy for the Group in Hong Kong since the introduction of
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance by
the HKSAR Government in December 2000. From 1st December, 2000 onwards, existing staff members can
opt to stay in the Scheme or join the MPF while all new staff members are only entitled to join the MPFE

The MPF is available to all employees aged between 18 and 65 with at least 60 days of service under the
employment of the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income at a maximum of HK$20,000 per month. The benefits are required by law to be preserved

until the retirement age of 65.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated income statement during the
year amounted to HK$22,508,000 against which forfeited contributions amounting to HK$5,497,000 have
been deducted. There were forfeited contributions amounting to HK$470,000 available at the year end date
for the reduction of future employer's contributions.
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Substantial Shareholder

As at 31st March, 2001, the only substantial shareholder of the Company was Dr CHOW Yei Ching who held
615,445,993 chares representing approximately 50% of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in
the registers required to be kept under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, there were no parties whom were known to the Directors to be the registered holders

or have any interest or right to subscribe for 10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:.

Arrangement for Acquisition of Shares or Debentures

Except for the share option scheme adopted by the Company and the share options granted to certain Directors,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which was established pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, comprising
Messrs lain Leonard DALE and WONGC Wang Fat, Andrew, met twice in the year. During the meetings, the
Committee reviewed the Connected Transactions, interim and annual reports of the Group and discussed with

management the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters.

Code of Best Practice

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied throughout the year with the guidelines for the
Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix i4 of the Listing Rules.

Post Balance Sheet Everts

Details of the significant post balanze sheet events are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

Auditaors
The financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who retire and,
being eligible, otfer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 10ta July, 2001
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BE-BEERSEEET
Certified Public Accountants EERBRTEER 1S @@H@U@ﬁ@

26/F, Wing On Centre KRR L2618

;;gcigzzught Road Central T@@]@Em@
Tolmatsy

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 34 to 83 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report
our opinion to you.

Basis of epinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. [t also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the

Group as at 31st March, 2001 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10th July, 2001
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Consolidated Income Statement
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover 3 3,774,657 4289 547
Cost of sales (3,115,102) (3,553,537)
Gross profit 659,555 736,010
Other revenue 4 64,722 132,084
Distribution cests (237,194) (279,161)
Admiristrative expenses (121,041) (122,069)
Other operating expenses 5 (44,790) (37,347)
Profit from opsrations before finance costs 6 321,252 429517
Finance costs 7 (83,795) (51,804)
tii Profit from opsrazions 3 237,457 377,713
Share of results of assoc:ates (9,752) 623
Share of results of jointlv controlled entities 5,974 375
] ; Profit kefore taxazion 233,679 378,711
Taxaticn S | . o 8 (49,460) (80,359)
i ) o S, ‘ L
. . - ‘
e : Profit before minority interests e v 184,219 298,352
] ‘ Minority interebté” ‘ T (12,460) (23,663)
g ‘ Profit available for appropriation 9 171,759 274,689
Dividends 10 (73,214) (91,886)
Profit fo- the year retained ‘ 98,545 182,803
C TN ' : Co
Earnings per share 11
. Basic 15 cents 24 cents
Diluted o : ‘ 14 cents 24 cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheer

As At 31st March, 2001

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Properties under development
Interests in associates
[nterests in jointly controlled entities
Investments in securities
Pledged deposits
Club debenture

Current assets
Inventories
Properties for sale
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
Amounts due from customers for contract work
Dividends receivable from associates
Investments in securities
Other short-term unlisted investments
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals
Construction costs payable
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities
Amounts due to customers for contract work
Bills payable
Obligations under finance leases
Deferred service income
Provision for taxation
Proposed dividend
Bank loans
Other secured loans
Short-term bank loans and overdrafts

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Other secured loans
Obligations under finance leases
Deferred taxation

Minority interests

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Note
12

14
16

18

19
20
21

22

18

23

22

24

25
26

28
29

2001 2000
HK$'000 HKS000
377,904 410,958
953,008 880,400
35,552 6,279
82,503 2,237
2,881 3,452
5,780 35,536
63,000 —
1,869 1,869
1,522,497 1,420,731
244,532 264,142
1,161,638 1,163,495
1,040,749 1,127,242
902 —
35,187 39,742
84,688 148,931
3,361 1,710
48,809 95,370
— 33,364
705,242 607,033
3,325,108 3,485,029
883,058 865,344
176,248 249,362
79 42
19,032 19,032
5,688 75,294
120,264 129,374
45 116
111,846 39,014
31,128 60,980
43,082 58,283
110,325 263,646
3,382 3,278
255,032 479,389
1,759,209 2,244,154
1,565,899 1,241,875
3,088,396 2,662,606
605,964 233,464
18,840 22,222

— 45

— 180
624,804 255,911
375,411 364,382
2,138,181 2,042,313
307,726 291,413
1,820,455 1,750,900
2,138,181 2,042,313

The financial statements on pages 34 to 83 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10th July, 2001 and are signed on

its behalf by:

KUOK Hoi Sang
DIRECTOR
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FUNG Pak Kwan
DIRECTOR
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‘Bafance Sheet

As at 31st March, 2001

‘ 2001 2000
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current asseis
Interests in subsidiaries 15 1,482,926 1,588,448
Interests in associates 16 17,874 23,438
[nvestments in s=curities 18 5,750 13,178
Club debenture 599 599
1,507,149 1,625,663
Current assets
Debicrs, denosits and prepayments 3,321 3,818
Amounts due, from subsidiaries L 1,060,566 656,706
Amounts due frem associates 902 —
Dividends rece*vable ‘rom subsidiaries 7,043 11,515
Investments in securities 18 — 54,939
Cast and bark talances 12,093 67,365
1,083,925 794,343
Current liabilities,
Creditors, dapcsits anc accruals 2,080 5,097
Amcunts due te subsidiaries 943,648 755,817
Amoalﬁts due t¢ associates ‘ —_ 26
Provision for taxation 12,794 13,052
Proposed dividend 43,082 58,283
Bank Ioans 25 — 7,920
Short-term bank loans and overdrafts — 275,993
1,001,604 1,116,188
Net cu-rent assets (liabil:ties) 82,321 (321,845)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,589,470 1,303,818
Non-current lizbilities
Bank loans ) 25 100,000 20,026
1,489,470 1,283,792
|
Capital and reserves
Share capital 28 307,726 291,413
Rese-ves 29 1,181,744 992,379
1,489,470 1,283,792
* KUOK Hoi Sang FUNG Pak Kwan
DIRECTOR S DIRECTOR

Chevalie: Internatonal Holdings Limited - ' Annual Report 2000 — 2001




Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Deficit) surplus on revaluation of investment properties (19,422) 30,726
Surplus on revaluation of properties for own use 7,598 62,123
Exchange difference arising on translation of
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries (9,160) 2,449
Share of reserves of associates — (7,615)
Net (losses) gains not recognised in the income statement (20,984) 87,683
Profit for the year 171,759 274,689
Total recognised gains 150,775 362,372
Coodwill arising on acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries
and associates eliminated directly against reserves (17,315) (3,180)
133,460 359,192
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Consolidaied Cash Flow Statement
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001
2001 2000
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Net cash'inflow from operating activities - 30 587,159 1,215,802
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Dividends paid (52,819) (38,527)
Dividends received from associates 1,731 7,017
Dividends received from jointly conirolled entit:es 7,500 5,000
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries (19,227) (20,553)
Dividends received from investments in securities 811 1,144 i
Interest received 41,822 41,419 !
Interest paid (88,789) (65,163)
Finance lease charges (11) (16)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments
and servicing of finance (108,982) (69,679)
Taxatica’ o
Profits tax paid (83,841) (58,080)
Profits tax refurced 5,745 1,480
Net tax paid (78,096) (56,600)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (140,813) (22,588)
‘ Dlspocal of property, plant and equipment ‘ 1,357 3,284
Purchase of properties ‘or development (29,833) —
Dispasal of 2 property oroject —_ 96,138
Purci:ase of additional interest in subsidiaries (14,531) (8,303}
Purc:.ase of subsidiaries 31 — (351,997)
Disposal of subsidiaries 32 — (423)
Advance from a former subsidiary — 278
Repayment by subsidiary not consclidated —_ 595
Purchase of and additional investments in associates (20,246) (7)
(AdVanCC to] resayments by associarss (9,667) 4,622
Repa siments b ()dvance to) Jomtly u)ntrolled eﬁtmes 4,555 (910)
Increase in piedoed deposm (63,000) —
Withdrawals of fixed deposits with maturity
date beyond three months —_ 178,813
Withdrawals of deposits with stakeholders — 255,057
Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing activities (272,178) 154,559
Net cash inflow before financing 127,903 1,244,082
Financing 33
New bank ard cther loans 515,700 208,234
Repayment cf bank and other loans raised (448,491) (1,615,379)
Issue of new sharss 707 705
Share issue experises (21) (22)
Contribution by mmoritv
shareholders of subsidiaries : 2 9,520
Repayment to minority shareholder : ofa subsndlary (24,318) —
Repa ment of fmance lease obligations ; ‘ (116) (108)
Net cash mﬂow {(outflow) from financing 43,463 (1,397,050)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 171,366 (152,968)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April 293,399 445,581
Effect cf changzs in foreign exchange razes (5,155) 786
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March 34 459,610 293,399
Chevalier Internatioral Holdings Limited Annual Report 2000 — 2001




Notes to the Financial Statements

U S N U S S S D St S

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

GENERAL
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
marketing, installation and maintenance of lifts and escalators, air-conditioning systems, electrical and mechanical
systems, power equipment and industrial equipment and environmental engineering equipment; supply and installation
of building materials and equipment; sale, servicing and leasing of motor vehicles; sale of computer and office
equipment; trading of general merchandise; provision of telecommunication services, IT and network solutions,
technical and maintenance services and paging services; insurance business, building management, hotel and travel

agency services; property investment and trading; leasing of office equipment and securities trading.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the revaluation of
certain properties and securities and in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the {ompany and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st March each year and also incorporate the Group's interests in associates and jointly controlled

entities on the basis set out in {d) and (e) below.

The results of subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group have been eliminated on consol:dation.

(b) Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value ascribed to the Group's
share of the separable net assets at the date of acquisition of subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled
entities, is written off to reserve immediately on acquisition. Negative goodwill, which represents the excess
of the fair value ascribed to the Group's share of the separable net assets at the date of acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entities over the purchase consideration, is credized to reserves in the year of

acquisition.

On the disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities, the attributable amount of goodwill
previously eliminated against or credited to reserves is included in the determination of the profit or loss on

disposal of the subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (continued)

()

(d)

(e)

fnvestments in subsidiaries

A wubsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued
equity share capital, controls more than half of the voting power or where the Company controls the

composition of its board of directors or equivalent governing body.

[nvestments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost, as reduced by any impairment

losses recognised.

Interests in associates

Anassociate is an enterprise overwhich the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, including

participation in financial and operating policy decisions.

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition results of the associates
for the year. In the consolidated balancs sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group's share of the net

assetsi of the associates.

Waen. the Group transacts.with its asscciates, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment

of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, invesiments in associates are stated at cost, as reduced by any impairment

losses recognised.

Joint ventures

A joint'venture is a contractual arringement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic

activity which is subject to joint contrcl and over which none of the participating parties has unilateral control.

Joiutly controlled assets

Where'a group company undertakes its activities under joint venture arrangements directly, constituted as
jointly controlled assets, the Group's share of jointly controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with
other venturers are recognised in the financial statements of the relevant investing company and classified
according to their nature. Liabilities ard expenses incurred directly in respect of interests in jointly controlled

assets are accounted for on an accrval basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group's share of the output of jointly controlled assets, together with its
shzre of joint venture expenses, are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transactions will flow to/from the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e

U]

(g)

Joint ventures {continued)
Jointly controlled entities
Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an

interest are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are included in the consolidated balance sheet at the Croup's
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities. The Group's share of post-acquisition results of jointly
controlled entities is included in the consolidated income statement.

When the Group transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

The Company's investments in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost, as reduced by any impairment
losses recognised.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at cost. Investments
other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment securities and other invesrments.
Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term strategic purpose, are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment losses recognised. Other investments are

measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in income statement for the period.

QOther short-term investments

Options acquired for short-term investment purpose are carried at their market value at each balance sheet

date, with unrealised gains and losses included in the income statement for the period.
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Nozes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

2. FPJNCIPAI&:ACCOUNT]NC POL]C]ES {continued)
(hl Investrent properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental income

being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investrent properties ars stated at their open market value and are revalued by independent professional
valuers. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment properties is credited or
charged to the investment sroperty revaluation reserve unless the balance of this reserve is insufficient to
cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance of the
investment property revalvation reservé is charged to the income statement. Where a decrease has previously w
been charged to the income statemert and a revaluation increase subsequently arises, this increase is credited

to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged.

On the disposal of an investmént property, the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve

atteibutable to that property is transferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of the relevant lease is

20 vezrs or less.

(1 Property, plant and equipment
(i) Hotel properties
lotel properties are s:ated at their revalued amount, being the fair value on the basis of their existing
use at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are performed
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date. Any surplus arising on revaluation of
such properties is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
. ... decrease of the same asset .previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in net carrying amount

arising on revaluation of ani asset'is charged to the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. Where a deficit
has previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation surplus subsequently arises, this
surplus is credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to
retained profits.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on hotel properties over the remaining terms of the
relevant land lease.

(ii)  Other properties

Properties held for own use are stzted at their revalued amount, being the fair value on the basis of their

existing use at the date of reveluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date. Any increase arising on revaluation
of such properties is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to
the income statemen= to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the

. bélance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the

- subsequent sale or retirement of & revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to
retained protits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

Annual Report 2000 — 2001

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Otber properties (continued)

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. Depreciation is providec on leasehold land cover the
remaining term of the respective leases. Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 50 years or the remaining terms of the
respective leases, whichever is the shorter.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the plant and equipmert over their estimated useful
lives after taking into account their estimated residual value, on the reducing balance basis, at the following

rates per annum;

Initial charge Annual

upon purchase charge

Computer equipment 20% 40%
Others 20% 20%

Assets held for leasing are depreciated over the term of the leases.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as

owned assets.

Where the recoverable amount of an asset has declined below its carrying amount, the carrying amount
is reduced to reflect the decline in value. In determining the recoverable amount of assets, expected

future cash flows are not discounted to their present values.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Properties for sale and under development

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Properties under development

are stated at cost less provision for Joss where appropriate.

Cost comprises the cost of acquisition of properties, construction costs, other direct costs and berrowing

costs capitalised. Net realisable value is estimated by management based on prevailing market conditions or

where a binding sales agreement is executed, by reference to the agreed selling prices.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

(k)

(m)

[nventeries

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase
and, where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Ins:allation contracts

Whiénlthe outcome ofa contract can be esnmated reliably, contract costs are charged to the income statement
by reference to the stage of completion’ ‘of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the
value of work carried out during the year. When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable that
tot'a‘l‘c‘c'?“r'}tract' costs will exceed toal c“'_o,ri"t"ract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
Contracts in progress at the batance shzet date are recorded in the balance sheet at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented in the balance
sheet as “Amounts due from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or "Amounts due to customers for
contract work” (as a liabil:ty), where applicable. Amounts received before the related work is performed are
included in the balance sheert as a liability. Amounts billed for work performed on a contract but not yert paid
by zhe customers are included in the balance sheet under “Debtors, deposits and prepayments”.

Revenue recognition

When the outcome of an instalfation contract can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised using the
per¢ entage of completion method, niezsured by reference to the value of work carried out during the period.
When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of

contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from properties developed for sale, where there are no pre-sales prior to completion of development,
ey

is recogaised on the executicn of 2 bmdmg sales agreement or when the relevant occupation permit is issued

by the Authorities, whichever is the later.

Income from properties pre-sold prior to completion of development is recognised according to the stage of
complétion and is calculated by refersnce to the development costs incurred to date as a proportion to the
estimated total development costs.

Income from property trading is recognised on the execution of a binding sales agreement.

Income from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and title to the goods has passed to the

customer.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when services are rendered. Receipts in advance of

provision of services are acccunted for as deferred income.

Insurance agency commission is recognised on the effective commencement or renewal dates of the related

policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Revenue recognition {continued)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Annual Report 2000 — 2001

Insurance premium is recognised as income when an insurance policy is accepted and the relevant debit note

is issued by the Company.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate

applicable.

Dividend from investments is recaognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Income from sale of securities is recognised on a trade date basis.

Rental income and other earnings under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms

of the respective leases.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of the assets remain with the lessors are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments on assets leased by the Group and income on property, plant and
equipment of the Group leased to third parties are dealt with in the income statement on a straight-line basis

over the terms of the relevant lease.

Finance leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets concerned to the Group. Assets held under finance leases are capitalised at their fair
values at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of interest charges, is included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the
total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over

the period of the relevant lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on :he temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

PEINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

&)

(r)

(s)

Fcreign currencies

The accounting records of the Groun, other than those subsidiaries not operating in Hong Kong, are maintained
in Heng Kong dollars. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies during the year are translated into
Hoﬁg Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of transactions or on the contracted settlement
date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are re-translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the razes of exchange ruling at that date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are

dealt with in the income stztement.

On consolidation, the finarcial statements of overseas subsidiaries, associates and jointly conirolled entities
are translatec at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences arising on consolidation

are dealt with in the exchange flictuation reserve.

Taxation

Tke charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or
diszllowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of income and
expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the financial statements.
The tax effect of timing dirferences, computed using the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation in

the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will crystallise in the

foreseeable future.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents represent shoct-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which were within three months of maturity when acquired, less advances from banks

repayable within three months from the date of the advance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P O S S S N N SN

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

3.  TURNOVER AND CONTRIBUTION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to profit from operations by business segment and geographical

area are as follows:

Contribution

Turnover from operations
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
By business segment:
Marketing, installation and maintenance
of lifts and escalators, air-conditioning
systems, electrical and mechanical
systems, power equipment and industrial
equipment and environmental
engineering equipment 1,741,008 1,736,889 166,745 132,799
Supply and installation of building
materials and equipment 271,633 565,024 97,837 89,846
Sale, servicing and leasing of
motor vehicles 332,360 385,152 630 3,584
Sale of computer, office equipment
and leasing of office equipment 534,941 563,828 8,639 14,367
Trading of general merchandises 121,081 95,670 (7,527) (5,562)
Telecommunication, IT and network
solutions, technical and maintenance
services 408,324 478,716 19,448 33,588
Property investment and trading 59,851 244,576 16,792) 31,482
Insurance business 125,206 16,498 (845) (2,218)
Building management, hotel and travel
agency services and others 180,253 203,194 (30,678) 80,827
3,774,657 4,289,547 137,457 377,713
By geographical area:
Hong Kong 2,563,990 2,736,334 140,878 289,525
The People's Republic of China, other than
Hong Kong ("PRC") 372,501 648,269 51,506 46,746
Canada 349,136 402,780 2,623 2,840
Singapore 164,118 268,714 32,688 29,628
U.S.A. 90,681 83,572 334 (1,052)
Thailand 141,433 145314 8,917 13,175
Others 92,798 4,564 511 (3,149)
3,774,657 4,289,547 237,457 377,713
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Notes to the Financial Statements
' Cane “ For ThelYear Ended 31st March, 2001

4,  OTHER REVENUE

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 ,
]
Included in other revenue are:
Cezin on disposal of a property project — 74,998
Interest frorn bank and other deposits 36,072 38,531
Iaterest earned on debt securities 5,311 4,225
Dividends received or receivable from listed securities 811 1,144
Provision fcr loss on interests in associates written back 3,000 —_
Managerment fee 7,114 7,772
5. (O THER OPERATING EXPEMNSZES
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Included in other operating expenses are:
Deficit on revaluation of properties for own use 1,510 4,445
Frovision for bad and doubtful debts 3,039 22,227
Loss on dispésal of property, plant and ecuipment 4,291 1,002
Exchange loss 23,441 —
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6. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE FINANCE COSTS

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit from operations before finance costs is arrived
at after charging:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Own assets 55,344 46,346
Assets held under finance leases 43 63
55,387 46,409
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work (71) (99)
55,316 46,310
Auditors' remuneration 4,876 4,429
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments {Note a) 536,092 546,714
Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of <@
Premises 31,805 99,876
Others 687 696
32,492 100,572
Net realised and unrealised holding loss on
investments in securities 30,165 —
and crediting:
Gross rental income of HK$58,781,000 (2000: HK$29,261,000)
less outgoings from properties (Note b) 46,139 14,884
Gross earnings of HK$434,000 (2000: HK$544,000)
less outgoings from leasing of equipment 253 395
Exchange gain — 8,611
Net realised and unrealised holding gain on investments in securities — 21,247
Notes:

(a)  Included in staff costs is an amount of HK$4,826,000 (2000: HK$3,239,000) in respect of redundancy payments made to staff.

(b)  Included in rental income is an amount of HK$2,303,000 (2000: HK$530,000] less outgoings of HK$943,000 (2000: HK$306,000)

received from jointly controlled assets.
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7. FINANCE COSTS

S o . e R 2001 2000
. U : L HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings
wholly repayab’e within 5 years 85,270 57,018
Interest on other borrowings 2,636 493
Finance lease charges 11 16
87,917 57,527
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work (4,122) (5,723)
83,795 51,804

borrowing costs capitalised are calculated by zpplying an average capitalisation rate of 8% (2000: 8%) to expenditures

on qualifying assets.

8.  TAXATIOM

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
The charge comprises:
Company and subsidiaries
Current vear profits tax
Hong Kong 35,527 64,755
Overseas 13,088 10,176
. Deferred taxation
-t Hong Kong -+~ e o (180) (915)
‘ 48,435 74,016
Associates
Curreni year profits tax
Honz Kong 805 4,607
Jointly contzolled entitiss
Curren: year profits tax
Hong Kong 220 1,736
49,460 80,359

Pro‘vision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16% (2000: 16%) on the estimated assessable profits
less available tax relief for losses brougkt forward of each individual company.

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rate applicable to the relevant local legislation on the

‘ estimated assessable profits.

Deetails of the potential deferred tax credis {charge) not provided for in the year are set out in note 27.
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- 9. PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION
: Of the Group's profit available for appropriation, a profit of HK$242 551,000 (2000: HK$8,515,000) has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company.

J 10. DIVIDENDS

2001 2000
HK$%'000 HK$'000

Interim dividend paid

HK$0.025 per share on 1,202,859,743 shares

(2000: HK$0.030 per share on 1,119,451,648 shares) 30,071 33,584
Final dividend proposed

HK$0.035 per share on 1,230,904,366 shares

{2000: HK$0.050 per share on 1,165,654,152 shares) 43,082 58,283
Final dividend for prior year on additional shares issued

]
|

before the closing of the register of members for the dividend 61 19

75,214 91,886

The amount of final dividend payable for the year ended 31st March, 2001 has been computed on the assurption

that no grantees of share options will subscribe for shares prior to the record date for payment of dividend. Dividends

payable would increase by HK$3,581,000 if all grantees of share options exercised their rights to subscribe for

shares before the closing of register of members for the current year's final dividend.
Shareholders have an option to receive new shares of the Company in lieu of cash for the interim and final dividend.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2001 2000
HK$'c00 HK$'000
Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share 171,759 274,689
Adjustments to the share of results of subsidiaries
based on dilution of their earnings per share (68) (328)
Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 171,691 274,361

Number of shares

'000 ‘000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share 1,182,860 1,122,435
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options (Note) 11,093 9,387
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings per share 1,193,953 1,131,822

Note: The calculation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of certain outstanding share options as the exercise price

was higher than the average market price per share during the two years ended 315t March, 200+.
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Hong Kong PRC COverseas
under under on
medium-term medium-term freehold
leases leases land Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THE GROUP
AT VALUATION ‘
‘At tst April. 2000 194,750 11,250 204,958 410,958
Exchange adjustments — — (8,752) (8,752)
Deficit on zevaluation (8,667) (1,650) {13,985) (24,302)
At 31st March, 2001 186,083 9,600 182,221 377,904

Nates:

(a] I’W@‘{?f{ in investment properties in Hp‘nguKon‘g with a carrying value of HK$23,333,000 {2000: HK$26,000,000) represent the

Group§ share of interest in jointly controlled assets.

(b)Y  Properties were revalued on an open market existing use basis at 315t March, 2001 by independent professional valuers. Properties in
Hong Kong and PRC were revalued by Knight Frank and DTZ Debenbam Tie Leung Limited. Querseas properties were revalued by
CB Richard Eliis (Pte) Ltd and DTZ Devenbam Tie Leung Limited.

(o1 Charges were created on the investment proferties with a total carrying value of HK$ 170,972,000 (2000: HK$182,980,000) to

sectire bank loans and other facilities exterided to the Group as disclosed in notes 25 and 36.

(d)  Gross rental income derived from investrent properties for the year amounied to IK$19, 154,000 (2000, HK$ 14,302,000},
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Properties for own use Hote! properties
Machinery,  Furniture, fixtures,
tools, other

Hang Kong PRC Overseas PRC Overseas transmitters equipment,

under under under under under under under under and yacht and

long- medium- long- medium- share- on long-  medium-  medium- on  telecom- motar vehicles

term term term terni term  freehold term term term  freehold  munication held for ~ held for

leases leases leases leases leases land leases leases Jeases land  equipment  own use leasing Total

HK$000  HK§ooo  HKSoo  HKSooo  HK§$ooo  HK§ooe  HKSooo  HK$oes  HK®eop  HKSooo  HKSooo  HKSooo  HK$ooo  HKSooo

THE GROUP

AT COST OR VALUATION

At 15t Aprif, 2000 81700 447,050 12,813 19,370 643 59,771 18,584 6251 26,000 80,250 88,984 175914 1102 1,018,440
Eschange adjustments - - - - - 14,256/ (794) 1999} - {6.000) (941) 2233 (657 (15,288)
Additions 105,988 - - — - — - — 849 — 12,589 20,681 706 140,813
Disposals — ~ — — — — — — 1203} — 6583 (24599) 637 (41,998)
Reclassification — - — - — —_ - — 11,850 — (5,083} (6,767} - —
{Deficit) surplus on revaleacion {1,888} {10,670} (706! {1.0001 5] 5794 {1.169] {10} {1,312 (3712} —_ — - (14,828)
At 31st March, 2001 185,800 436,330 1211 18,370 390 61,310 16,621 5141 37184 70,538 78,986 163,000 1106 1,087,139

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Ac kst April, 2000 - - - - - - - - - — 4300 94606 Hs 138040
Exchange adjustments — — - — — — — — - — (634) {1,360 (23) {2,217)
Charge for the year 1738 9481 240 306 35 1,642 413 373 4,053 1,638 10,770 13941 233 55,397
Eliminated upon disposals — — — — — — — — (84) — (14,556) {21,376} i334) {16,350
Reclassification — — - — — — — — 370 — (160 (210) — —
Eliminated upon revaluation {1.738) (9.431) (140) (806) {55; (1,642) i415) (375} {4.339) {1,638} - — - (20,729}
At 31st March, 2001 - — — — — — — - — — 38,440 95,401 290 134,131
NET BOOK VALUES
At 2155 March, 2001 185,800 436,380 12,112 13,370 590 61,310 16,611 3,142 37,184 70,538 40,546 67,599 §16 933,008
At 315t March, 2000 81,700 447,050 12818 19,370 645 5977 18,584 6,131 26,000 80,250 45,964 81,308 688 830,400
An analysis of the cost and

valuation of the Group's

property, plant and

equipment is as foilows:
At cost - _ — — — - — - — — 78986 163000 1106 243,092
At 2001 professional valuation 185,800 436,380 9,500 18,370 — 61,310 16,621 5142 16,000 70,538 - — — 829,661
At 2001 directors' vajuation — - 2612 — 590 — — — 11,184 — — — — 14,386

185, 300 436,380 1111 18,370 390 61,110 16,621 5192 37,184 70,538 78,986 163,000 1,106 1,087,139

Notes:

{a)  Certain properties in PRC and overseas were revalued on 31st March, 2001 by the directors on an open market existing use basis.
Properties in Hong Kong, overseas and PR.C other thaw the above-mentioned were revalued on 345t March, 2001 by independent
professional valuers, Knight Frank, DTZ Debenbam Tie Leung Limited, CKS Property Consultants Pte Ltd, Brooke International

(Thailand) Limited and CIBI Information, Inc. on an open market existing use basis.

(b)  Had the properties been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying value as at 3 (st March, 2001 would have been

HKS$s27,355,000 (2000: HK$741,249,000).

(c)  Charges were created on the properties with a total carrying value of HK$547,054,000 (2000: HK$517,033,000) to secure bank

loan and other facilities extended to the Group as disclosed in notes 25 and 36.

(d)  The net book value of machinery, tools and equipment held under finance leases amounted to HK$160,000 (2000: HK$203,000].
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14.

15.

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

FROPEETIZS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

THE GROUIP

AT COST

At 1st Apﬁri],v 1999

Exéhangﬁ: :ac‘lj‘tvlstments

Ariéing from ‘acquisition of subsidiaries
o o

At 31st March, 2000

Exchange adjustments

Additions |

At 31st March, 2001

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Cost less provision for impairment of shares listed in

Hong Kong

Singapore

Unlisted shares, at cost less provision for impairment

Amounts duefrom subsidiaries

Market value of listed shares
Hong Kong

Singapore

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2001 are set out on pages 75 to 79.

PRC
Hotel
property Overseas
under properties
medium-term on
lease freehold land Total
HK$'000 HK¢$'000 HK$'000
— 104 104
—_ 6,175 6,175
— 6,279 6,279
— (560) (560)
29,833 — 29,833
29,833 5,719 35,552

THE COMPANY

2001
HK$'000

171,225

77,014
985,165
249,522

1,482,926

112,921
86,600

2000
HK$'000

129,868
77,014
1,061,751
319,815

1,588,448

217,906
123,216

Theé Directors are af the opinior that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive

length and therefore the subsid:aries as set out are those which principally affected the results or assets of the

Group.

Chevalier Internatiorél Holdings Limited
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17.

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets

Associate listed in Hong Kong 21,796 32,099 —_— —
Unlisted associates 51,900 50,138 — —

Cost less provision for impairment
Associate listed in Hong Kong — — 17,874 23,438
Amounts due from associates 8,807 — — —
82,503 82,237 17,874 23,438
Market value of listed associate 16,561 24,771 13,381 19,917

Particulars regarding the principal associates as at 31st March, 2001 are set out on page 80.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all associates would be of excessive length

and therefore the associates as set out are those which principally affected the results or net assets of the Group.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$000
Share of net assets 2,881 3,452

Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities as at 31st March, 2001 are set out on page 81.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all jointly controlled entities would be of
excessive length and therefore, the jointly controlled entities as set out are those which principally affected the
results or net assets of the Group.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
200t 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Other investments:
Equity securities
Listed
Hong Kong 11,413 28,175 5,750 13,178
Overseas — 25,586 — —
Debt securiries
Listed
Overseas 38,728 77,115 — 54,939
Unlisted .. ‘
Overseas ‘ ‘ 4,448 30 — e
54,589 130,906 5,750 68,117
Market values of listed securities
‘Equity"‘sejgijjrities ‘
Hong Kong 11,413 28,175 5,750 13,178
Overseas — 25,586 — —
Debt securities
Overseas 38,728 77,115 — 54,939
50,141 130,876 5,750 68,117
Carrying vatue analysed for repersing purposes are:
Non-currens j 5,780 35,536 5,750 13,178
Current . 48,809 95,370 — 54,939
54,589 130,906 5,750 68,117
19. INVENTORIES
e THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials R 34,235 27,144
I=ventory held for resale 199,938 211,992
Consumeble stores 10,359 25,006
244,532 264,142
The cost of inventeries recognisad as an expense during the year was HK$1,159,336,000 (2000: HK$1,398,093,000).
At 31st March, 2001, inventories held for recale included an amount of HK$86,114,000 (2000: HK$120,046,000)
carried at net realisable value.
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20.

21.

22.

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

PROPERTIES FOR SALE
The cost of properties sold during the year amounted to HK$3,135,000 (2000. HK$203,123,000).

At 31st March, 2001, properties included an amount of HK$413,900,000 (2000 HK$534,554,000) carried at net
realisable value.

At 31st March, 2001, properties included the Group’s share of interest in jointly controlled assets with an aggregate
book value of HK$17,151,000 (2000:HK$17,151,000).

DEBTQORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
At 31st March, 2001, debtors, deposits and prepayments included the Group's share of debtors in relation to jointly
controlled assets of HK$790,000 (2000:HK$238,000).

At 31st March, 2001, included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$706,231,000
(2000:HK$653,625,000). The aged analysis of trade debtors is as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
0 - 60 days 578,204 517,722
61 - 90 days 34,553 31,336
Over 90 days 93,474 104,567
706,231 653,625

The Group has established credit policies for customers in each of its core business. The average credit period
granted for trade debtors was 60 days.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$000
Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
Contract costs incurred 4,209,048 3,848,664
Recognised profits less recognised losses 408,560 310,612
4,617,608 4,159,276
Less: Progress billings (4,538,608) (4,085,639)
79,000 73,637
Represented by:
Amounts due from customers included in current assets §4,688 148,931
Amounts due to customers included in current liabilities 75,688) (75,294)
79,000 73,637

At 31st March, 2001, retention monies held by customers for contract work amounted to HK$119,571,000 (2000:
HK$131,164,000). Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to HK$8,840,000 (2000:
HK$12,101,000).
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23. CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

At 31st March, 2001, creditors, deposits and accruals included the Group’s share of liabilities incurred in relation to
jointly controlled assets of HK$653,000 (2000: HK$319,000).

At 31st March, 2001, included in creditors, deposits and accruals are trade creditors of HK$364,194,000 (2000:
HK$44¢ 322,000). The aged analysis of the trade creditors is as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
0 - 60 days 338,211 417,883 |
61 - 90 days 8,931 10,663
Over 90 days 17,052 20,778
364,194 449,324
24. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
The maturity of obligations under
finance leases is as follows:
within 1 year 45 116 — —
more than 1 year but not
ex-:je‘elding 2 years o L — 45 — —
i b . 45 161 — —

Less: amaount due within

one year shown under
current liabilities (45) (116) — —
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25. BANK LOANS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
The maturity of the bank loan is as follows:
Repayable within one year 110,325 263,646 — 7.920
4 Repayable within a period of:
b more than 1 vear but not
exceeding 2 years 174,520 83,017 100,000 7,920
] more than 2 years but not
exceeding 5 years 181,670 133,694 — 12,106
p| more than 5 years 249,774 16,753 — —
716,289 497,110 100,000 27 946
Less: amount due within one year
shown under current fiabilities (110,325) (263,646) — (7,920}
605,964 233,464 100,000 20,026
Secured 598,789 497,110 — 27,946
Unsecured 117,500 — 100,000 —
716,289 497,110 100,000 27,946

Bank loans are secured by fixed charges on certain properties and other assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$1,323,689,000 (2000: HK$1,004,439,000). The bank loans carry interest at commercial rates
and are repayable by monthly instalments, the last of which falls due in the year 2012.

26. OTHER SECURED LOANS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
The maturity of the loans is as follows:
Repayable within one year 3,382 3,278 — —
Repayable within a period of:
more than 1 year but not
exceeding 2 years 3,508 3,382 — —
more than 2 years but not
exceeding 5 years 11,296 10,908 — —
over 5 years 4,036 7,932 — —
22,222 25500 — —
Less: amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities (3,382) (3,278) — —
18,840 22,222 — —

Other loans are secured by fixed charges on certain properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$12,613,000 (2000: HK$12,613,000). These loans carry interest at commercial rates and are repayable by monthly
instalments.
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1st April 180 1,095
Vrite back on reversal of timing difference (180) (915)

At 31st March — 180

O

Deferred tax was provided in respect of the timing differences arising due to the excess of tax allowances over

d=preciation.chargsd to the income statement.

At the balance sheet date, the major components of potential deferred tax assets not accounted for in the financial

statemenis of the Group are as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tax effect of timing difference because of;
Excess of debreciation over tax allowances 2,623 5,567
Unutilised tax losses 116,894 97,151
Other timing differences 293 1,807
119,810 104,525
The amount of the unrecognised tax credit (charge) for the year is as follows:
THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tax effect of timing difference because of:
Excess of depreciation over tax ailowances (2,944) 883
Unitilised tax losses S 19,743 13,917
Other timing differences (1,514) 1,360
15,285 16,160

A deferred tax asset of the Group has not been recognised in the financial statements as it is not certain that the tax
assét will be utilised in the foreseeable future.’
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax has not been accounted for on the surplus or deficit arising on the revaluation of the Group's properties

in Hong Kong, Singapore and Thailand as profits or losses arising on the disposal of these properties would not be

subject to taxation. Accordingly, the surplus or deficit does not constitute a timing difference for deferred tax purposes.

Deferred tax has not been accounted for on the deficit arising on the revaluation of the Group’s properties in PRC as

loss on disposal of PRC properties would not be subject to taxation. Accordingly, the deficit does not constitute a

timing difference for deferred tax purposes.

The potential deferred tax assets attributable to unutilised tax losses of foreign subsidiaries at the balance sheet date

will expire in the following years:

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2012
2013
2018

There is no significant deferred tax for the Company provided or unprovided.

28. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Issued and fully paid:
Ar 31st March, 1999
fssue of shares in lieu of cash dividends
Issue of shares under share option scheme

At 31st March, 2000
Issue of shares in lieu of cash dividends

Issue of shares under share option scheme

At 31st March, 2001

Annual Report 2000 — 2001

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
328 48
368 26
2,361 2,386
216 250
512 560
219 272
319 340
1,020 992
1,665 1,663
422 422
24 11
— 90
214 —

Number of
ordinary shares Nominal
of HK$0.25 each value
HK$'000
1,700,000,000 425,000
1,115,181,107 278,795
49,383,045 12,346
1,090,000 272
1,165,654,152 291,413
64,038,214 16,010
1,212,000 303
1,230,504,366 307,726
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: ‘

(a}  Awuthorised and issued share cépital

;

Theré were no changes in the authorised share capital during the two years ended 31st March, 2001.

Dusing the year, 35/993/59{ and 28,044,623 (2000: 3,618,541 and 45,764,504) shares were issued in lieu of
cash dividends payable to the shareholders at prices of HK$0.5700 and HK$0.5377 (2000 HK$0.5558 and
HK$0.5795) per share, respectively, giving a total consideration of approximately HK$35,596,000 (2000:
HEK$2€,531,00) and 512,600 (2000: 1,090,000) shares and 700,000 (2000: Nil) shares were issued on exercise
of options under share option scheme at a price of HK$0.6464 (2000. HK$0.6464) and HK$0.5376 (2000:
HK$0.5376) per share, respectively, giving a total consideration of approximately HK$707,000 (2000:
HK$705,000).

(b)  Share option scheme of the Company
A <hare option scheme for tae benefit of full-time employees including the Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries was approved and adopted in 1991 under which Directors may invite full-time emplovees, including
Exzcutive Directors, to tz<e up options to subscribe for an aggregate of not more than 10% of the total
number of shares in issue at a subscription price of not less than 80% of the average last dealt prices of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the five business days last preceding the
offer date or the nominal value of these shares, whichever is the greater. No option may be exercised earlier
than six months or later than three and a half years after it has been accepted and no option may be granted
after 6th October, 2001 and to any one person when if exercised in full by that person would result in the total
number of shares issued to that persor exceeding 25% of the aggregate number of the shares in respect of

which options are granted

Particulars of the options granted and exercised during each of the two years ended 31st March, 2001 are as

follows:
2000 .-
C Number of shares issuable under options

Price per share Period during  Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
payable on which cptions  at 1st April, during during at 31st March,
exercise of options are exercisable 1999 the year the year Cancelled 2000
HKS
0.5376 03/09/1998-03/09/2001 46,900,000 — — — 46,900,000
0.6264 07/10/1998-06/10/2001 26,200,000 - (1,090,000) (2,146,000} 22,964,000
0.4880 30/06/2000-29/05/2003 — 34,150,000 — — 34,150,000

73,100,000 34,150,000 (1,090,000) (2,146,000} 104,014,000
2001

Number of shares issuable under options

Price per share Period during  Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
payable on which options  at Ist April, during during at 31st March,
exercise of options are exercisable 2000 the year the year Cancelled 2001
HK$
0.5376 03/09/1953-03/09/2901 46,900,000 — (700,000) — 46,200,000
0.6454 - 07/10/1953-06/10/200° 22,964,000 —  (512,000)  (482,000) 21,970,000
0.4830 30/06/2000-29/06/2303 34,150,000 — _ e 34,150,000

104,014,000 —  {1,212,000) (482,000} 103,320,000

The CC"‘Ivl‘SidCI“atiOﬂ payable by each of tl';e grantees for each lot of aptions granted was HK$1. Exercise of the
outstanding ontions in full would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
102,320,000 (2000C: 104,014,000} additional shares of HK$0.25 (2000. HK$0.25) each and the receipt by the
Company of approximately HK$55,704.,000 {2000 HK$56,723,000) in cash.

Chevalie- Internaiional Holdings Limited Annual Report 2000 — 2001
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(@

Share option scheme of a Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited ("CiTL")

A share option scheme for the benefit of the full-time employees of a subsidiary of the Company, CiTL and its
subsidiaries was approved and adopted in 1991 under which the directors of CiTL may invite full-time
employees, including executive directors, to take up options to subscribe for an aggregate of not more than
10% of the total number of shares in issue at a subscription price of not less than 80% of the average last dealt
prices of the CiTLs shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the five business days last
preceding the offer date or the nominal value of the CiTLs shares, whichever is the greater. No option may be
exercised earlier than six months or later than three and a half years after it has been accepted and no option
may be granted after 6th October, 2001 and to any one person when if exercisec in full by that person would
result in the total number of shares issued to that person exceeding 25% of the aggregate number of the shares
in respect of which options are granted.

IR
Particulars of the share options granted and exercised during each of the two years ended 31st March, 2001

are as follows:

2000
Number of shares issuable under options

Price per share Period during  Qutstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
payable on which options  at Ist April, during during at 31st March,
exercise of options are exercisable 1999 the year the year Cancelled 2000
HK$
0.3376 03/09/1998-02/09/2001 40,900,000 — {17,300,000) — 23,600,000
0.3376 04/09/1998-03/09/2001 7,300,000 — (2,300,000) — 5,000,000
0.3920 07/10/1998-06/10/2001 9,076,000 — (6,772,000) (1,308,000) 996,000
0.4640 30/06/2000-29/06/2003 — 28,550,000 — — 28,550,000

57,276,000 28,550,000 (26,372,00C) (1,308,000) 58,146,000
2001

Number of shares issuable under options

Price per share Period during  Outstanding Granted Exercisec. Outstanding
payable on which options  at Ist April, during during at 31st March,
exercise of options are exercisable 2000 the year the year Cancelled 2001
HK$
0.3376 03/09/1998-03/09/2001 23,600,000 — - — 23,600,000
0.3376 04/09/1998-03/09/2001 5,000,000 —_ — — 5,000,000
0.3920 07/10/1998-06/10/2001 996,000 — (20,000) — $76,000
0.4640 30/06/2000-29/06/2001 28,550,000 —_ — — 28,550,000

58,146,000 — (20,000) — 58,126,000

Annual Report 2000 — 2001 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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28.

Chevalier Internationai Holdings Limited

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(

1
a

)

Share option scheme of Chevalier Singapore Holdings Limited (“CSHL")

A share option scheme known as the Chevalier Employees' Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved
and adopted by CSHL, a subsidiary of the Company which is listed on the Main Board of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading‘Limited ("SGX-ST"), on 15th December, 1995. The Scheme was adopted for the
benefis of full-time employess (including executive directors) of CSHL and its subsidiaries (the "CSHL Group”).
Under the Scheme, offers for the grant of options may be made to full time employees (including executive
directors) of the CSHL Graup to subscribe for shares in the capital of CSHL. The subscription price for each
share in CSHL in respect of which an option is exercisable is equal to the average of the last dealt price for the
share, as determined by reference to the daily official list published by the SGX-ST for the three consecutive
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option, or the nominal amount of the share,
whichever is higher. The maximum size of the Scheme is limited to 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of
CSHL. No option may be exercised zarlier than twelve months or later than sixty months from the date of
grart of that option. Not more than 50% of the total number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme
may be issued to employess of the rank of General Manager and above, and the maximum entitlement of any

emplovze cannot exceed 25% ot the total number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme.

No options under the scheme wete granted, exercised or cancelled during the two years ended 31st March,
2001 and the 204,900 options exercisasle during the period from 12th January, 1998 to 11th January, 2001 at
a price of S$0.59 per share outstanding at the beginning of the year were lapsed on 11th January, 2001.

Annual Report 2000 — 2001




Notes to the Financial Statements

RS S U

e

o

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

29. RESERVES

Property revaluation

Capital reserve Exchange
Share Capital  redemption  Investment  properties  fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve  properties  for own use reserve profits Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'co0 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THE GROUP
At tst April, 1999 540,250 83,178 7,526 42,301 28,436 (13,677) 781,005 1,469,019
Dilution of interest in .

subsidiaries — 419) — — — — (1,485) (1,904)
lssue of new shares 16,618 — — — — — — 16,618
Share issue expenses (22) — — — - — — (22)
Transfer (note b) {206,619} 106,619 — — — — — —
Net surplus on revaluation

of properties — — — 30,726 62,123 — — 92 849
Profit for the year, retained — — — — — — 182,803 182,803

Exchange difference on

transfation of financial

statements of overseas

subsidiaries — — — — — 2,449 — 2,449
Coodwill on acquisition of

additional interests in

subsidiaries and associates — (3,180) — — — — — (3,180)
Disposal of a subsidiary — — — — — (117) — (117)
Share of reserves in associates — — — (6,895) — (720) — (7,615)

At 315t March,

2000 350,227 286,198 7,526 66,132 90,559 (12,065) 962,323 1,750,900
Dilution of interests in

subsidiaries and

associates — (999) — — 3 (2) 338 (660)
Issue of new shares 19,990 — — — — — — 19,990
Share issue expenses (21) — — — — — — (21)
Transfer (note ¢) — — — — 444 (444) - —
Net {deficit) surplus on

revaluation of properties — — — (19,422) 7,598 — — {11,824)
Profit for the year, retained — — — - - — 98,545 98,545

Exchange difference on

translation of financial

statements of overseas

subsidiaries — — — - - '9.160) - (9,160)
Goodwill on acquisition of

additional interests in

subsidiaries and associates — (17,315) — — — — — (17,315)
At 31st March, 2001 370,196 267,884 7,526 46710 98,604 (21,671) 1,061,206 1 830,455
Notes:

{a)  Retained profits of the Group include loss of HK$42,796,000 [2000: HK$29,559,000) and loss of HK$ 15,773,000 (2000:
HKS$15,202,000) sustained by associates and jointly controlled entities respectively.

(b)  The amount disclosed as share premium in the financial statements of periods prior to 1999 has been re-analysed between share
premium attributable to the bolding company and share premium attributable to subsidiaries in 2000. The portion attributable to

subsidiaries bas been transferred to capital reserve,

(c)  The exchange difference on translation included in property revaluation reserve disclosed in the previous years' financial <tatements

is re-analysed and reclassified to exchange fluctuation reserve.
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29. RESERVES (contiqued:
| Capital
Share  Contributed redemption Retained
Premium surplus reserve profits Total
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE COMPANY

At 1st April 1699 333,631 95,185 7,526 622,672 1.059,014

[ssue of new shares 16,618 — — — 16,618

Share issue expenses (22) — — — 22)

: Unclaimed di\{idend‘s written back — 140 — — 140
: Frofit for the year — — — 8,515 8,515
Dividends.(note 10} . e e — - — (91,886) (91,886)

At 31st Merch, 2000 350,227 95,325 7,526 539,301 992,379

lesue of new chares 19,990 — — — 19,990

Share issue expenses ‘ 2 — — — (21)

Unclaimed dividends written back — 59 — — 59

‘ Profit for t}’le}ycar ‘ — — — 242,551 242,551
Dividends {not 10) — — —_— (73,214) (73,214)

At 31st March, 2001 - 370,196 95,384 7 526 708,638 1,181,744
Contributed surplus represents the difference arising between the value of net assets acquired and the nominal

asount of tie Company’s shares issusd upon reorganisation in 1989 less dividends paid out of the contributed
surplus subsequently. Under the Compaznies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus of the
Company is Gistributable to sharéholders.

At 31st March, 2001, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$804,022,000
(2000: HK$834,626,000).
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30. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit before taxation 233,679 378,711
Share of results of associates 9,752 (623)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities (5,974) (375)
Interest income (41,383) (42,756)
Interest expenses 83,784 51,788
Dividend income from investments in securities (811) (1,144)
Finance lease charges 11 16
Depreciation 53,316 46,310
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,291 1,002
Deficit on revaluation of properties 1,510 4. 445
Gain on disposal of a property project — (74,998)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries — 2
Gain on disposal of an associate (13) —
Loss on disposal of interests in jointly controlled entities — 1
(Write back) provision for loss on interests in jointly controlled entities (1,175) 326
(Write back) provision for loss on interest in associates (3,000) 235
Decrease (increase) in investments in securities 76,317 (89,635)
Decrease in properties for sale 16,577 165,629
Decrease in inventories 7,860 17,064
Decrease in amounts due from customers for contract work 66,550 72,504
Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments 78,903 1,015,737
Decrease (increase) in other short-term unlisted investments 38,364 (38,068)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to customers for
contract work (68,151) 8,539
Decrease in bills payable (7,701) (61,801)
Increase (decrease) in creditors, deposits and accruals 23,862 (173,285)
Decrease in construction costs payable (73,114) (58,824)
Increase in deferred service income 72,834 1,153
Exchange difference 18,871 (6,151)
353,480 837,091
Net cash inflow from operating activities 587,159 1,215,802
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For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

31. I’IJRCI—U\S‘E OF SUBSIDIARIES
fn the prior‘year, the Group acduired zhe remaining shares of an associate, Chevalier Development International
Limited, not already held by the Group at a consideration of HK$0.94 per share. The net assets acquired were as
“sllows:
HK$'000
Tavestment properties 172,690
Property, p-ant anc equipment 503,456
Properties under dc‘velopment‘ : 6,175
Interests’in'associates o 25,465
Interests in j‘ointly controlled entities 9,236
Properties for sale 448 626
Inventorizs 998
Débtors, deposits and prepayments 26,059
Investment in securities 770
Bank balznces and cash 64,760
Creditors, deposits and accruals (105,176)
Short-term bank loans (52,792)
Frovision for taxation (13,986)
658 Long-term bank loans (367,934)
Minority interest (57,440)
660,907
Less: share of net assets already tzken up in prior years (300,721)
Purchase:consideration 360,186

Satisfied by,

Cash

Net cash outflow zrising on acquisition:

360,186

HK$'c00

Cash con;ic‘ie“ration (360,186)

Frivatisation expenses (3,779)

Eank balances and cash-acquired - 64,760

Short-term bank loans acquired {52,792)
Net outflow of cash anc cash equivalents in

respect ‘of the purchase of subsidiaries (351,997}

=
=
dnd]

P

The subsidiaries acquired in the prior year contributed HK$14,322,000 to the Group's net operating cash flows,

paid HK$17 530,000 in respect of the net returns on investments and servicing of finance, paid HK$2,277,000 in
respect of taxation, utilised HK$2,164,000 for investing activities and paid HK$38,953,000 in respect of financing
activities. The subsidiaries also contribured HK$8 943,000 to the Group’s turnover and loss of HK$3,086,000 to the

E e d

Croup's pofii from operations im prior vear.

Chevalier internat oﬁal Holdings Limited
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

HK$'000
Net assets of subsidiaries disposed of in the prior year were:
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 34
Cash and bank balances 423
Advance to immediate holding company (278)
Creditors, deposits and accruals (124)
Minorities’ share of net assets (53)
Loss on disposal 2

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries

Bank balances and cash disposed of (423)
The subsidiaries disposed of did not have any significant impact on the Group's cash flow or operating results for
prior year. <§@
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33. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR
Share Obligations

capital under
Bank and and finance Minority
other loans premium leases interests
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1st April, 1999 1,724,372 819,045 268 294,950
Net cash inflow (outflow) from

financing (1,407,145) 683 (108) 9,520
Arising from acquisition of

subsidiaries 367,934 — — 57,440
Disposal of 3 subsidiary — — — (53)
Issue of shares in lieu of cash

dividends — 28,531 —_ —
Transfer between share premium

and capitzl reserve — (206,619) —_ —_
Share of profits and reserves by

minority shareho.ders of

subsidiaries — — — 23,078
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries — — — (20,553)
Effect of chdnges in foreign

exchange rates 3,204 — 1 —
At 31st March, 2000 688,365 641,640 161 364,382
Net cash inflow (outflow) from

financing 67,209 686 (116) (24,316)
Issue of shares in lieu of cash

dividends — 35,596 — —
Share of profizs and reserves by

minority shiareholders of

subsidizries —_ — — 4,572
Dividends pdid to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries — —_ — (19,227)
Efiect of changes in foreign

exchange rates (7,663) — — —
At 31st March, 2001 747,911 677,922 45 325,411

34. ANALYSIS'OF THE BAZANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$000

Cash and bank balances 705,242 607,033
Short-term bank loans and overdrafts (245,632) (313,634)
459,610 293,399
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35. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the Company are as follows:

2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fees 450 450
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 19,051 19,036
Contributions to retirement scheme 453 396
19,954 19,882

Apart from the Directors’ fees of HK$450,000 (2000. HK$450,000), no other emoluments were paid or are payable

to the Independent Non-executive Directors.
Emoluments of the Directors fall within the following bands:

Number of Directors

2001 2000
Bands
Nil - HK$1,000,000 3 3
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 3 3
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 2
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 1 1
HK$9,000,001 - HK$9,500,000 1 1

The five highest paid individuals includes four (2000: three) directors and the total emoluments paid to the five

highest paid individuals for both vears are as follows:

2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 16,826 16911
Contributions to retirement scheme 308 268
17,134 17,179

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals fall within the following bands:

Number of Individuals

2001 2000
Bands
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 3 3
HK$2,500,000 - HK$3,000,000 1 1
HK$9,000,000 - HK$9,500,000 1 1
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36. BANKING FACILITIES AND CHARGE OF ASSETS

Other than thosz disclosed in note 25, short-term bank loans and overdrafts of HK$36,539,000 (2000:
HX$385,470,000} are secured by charges on certain properties and other assets of the Group with total carrying
values of HK$31,843,000 (2000: HK$539,136,000).

37. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As'at the balance sheet date, the Compzny ard the Group had the following contingent liabilities and commitments:

{a}  The Company had contingent liabilities in respect of counter-indemnities given to bankers and insurance
institutions for their guarantees amounting to approximately HK$309 700,000 (2000. HK$309,700,000) issued
in respect of the Group's performance for maintenance and remedial work for Private Sector Participation
Scheme projects completed by the Group.

(b1 The Group and the Company had issuzd guarantees in respect of:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Banking facilities:

Subsidiaries — — 889,302 417,978
Associates - = R — 102,500 — 102,500

Pe-'ﬁor;j1ance bonds:
Subsidiariz=s — —_ 423,636 272,129
Associates 5,984 3,000 5,984 3,000
5,984 105,500 1,318,922 795,607

{(¢)  The Group had contingen* liabilizies of HK$5,368,000 (2000. HK$5,686,000) in respect of guarantees given
to an associate for mortgage finance provided to the purchasers of the properties previously held by another
assaciate,

(d);  The,Croup had contingent liabilities, tor Jong service payments to employees who have completed the required

number of years of service and under the Employment Ordinance to be eligible for long service payments on

., termination of their empleymentunder certain circumstances amounting to approximately HK$37,000,000
(2000 HK$32,000,000). .

(e}, Ann‘u.%l“commitmcnts in respect of leasing of premises payable within the next year under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'coo HK§$'000 HK$'000
Lezses which expire:
Within one year 7,416 6,115 — 20,914
In the second to fifth years inclusive 27,648 15,662 20,213 —
Over five years 1,159 1,680 — —
36,223 23,457 20,213 20,914
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company's associate, Chevalier Construction Holdings Limited ("CCHL") and their respective subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities are regarded as related parties for the purpose of Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice No. 20 issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Details of the material transactions

with these companies are as follows:

(a)  On 1st April, 2000, the Company entered into an agreement with CCHL, under which the Company shall
provide accounting, treasury, electronic data processing, company secretarial and personnel management
services to CCHL Group for a term of one year ended on 31st March, 2001 at a management fee calculated at
the rate of 0.3% of the aggregate annual turnover of the operating subsidiaries of CCHL. Management fee
received from the CCHL group under this agreement for the year ended 31st March, 2001 amounted to
HK$3,679,000 (2000: HK$7,172,000). The management agreement was expired on Ist April, 2001 and has

been renewed for a further term of one year.

(b) In August 2000, the Group acquire from CCHL its entire interest in Preussag Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Kong
Limited ("PPRHK") together with a debt due to CCHL at a total consideration of HK$21,248,000 as agreed
by both parties.

(c¢) During the year, the group received rental determined with reference to rmarket rates amounting to 53
HK$2,835,000 (2000: HK$2,889,000) from CCHL Group for the use of the Croup's premises. The rental
receivable as at the balance sheet date amounted to HK$349,000 (2000: HK$582,000).

{(d) An agreement was made between the Company and CCHL whereby CCHL Group may source supply of the
lifts and escalators, air conditioning systems, electrical and mechanical systems, building materials and
equipment and related installation services from the various subsidiaries of the Company from time to time at
prices agreed by the parties concerned. The value of work done and supplies made to CCHL Group during
the year and the amount receivable as at the balance sheet date amounted to HK$4,158,000 (2000:
HK$6,899,000) and HK$8,725,000 (2000. HK$284,000) respectively.

Apart from the above, the Group made advances to associates and jointly controlled entities during the year. The

advances with these companies are unsecured and without fixed terms of repayment. The outstanding balances at
31st March, 2001 due from/to these companies are disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet and note 16. At 31st
March, 2001, except for an amount of HK$5 000,000 (2000: Nil) bearing interest at commercial rates, a.l other

balances are interest-free,
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39. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

(b)

Subsequent to 31st March, 2001, the Group has entered into an agreement to dispose of its paging business at
a consideration of not less than its net current assets on date of completion plus the assessed income to be
reseived for certain months after the year end date. The revenue from the paging business for the year and the

centribution to the Group's results are as follows:

2001 2000

HK$'co0 HK$'000

Turnaver 32,690 41,937
Lass before taxation (986) (5,346)
Taxation — 940
Minority interests ) 489 2,198
Operating loss attributabls to the Group (497) - (2,208)

In April 200+, the Group acquired 19% equity interest in NordiTube Technologies AB ("NordiTube") at a
comsideration of approximately HK$3,600,000. NordiTube is a compnay listed on The Stockholm Stock
Exchange and is principally engaged in the design and construction for rehabilitating water-supply system,

gas-supply system and sewers.

In June 2001, the Company subscribed 6,482,000 shares at a consideration of HK$39 million in PRS
Rohirsanierung GmbH ("PRS"), one of the other shareholders of PPRHK. The Group’s effective interest in
PPRHK is increased from 45% tc 58% through the Group's holding of 44% of the enlarged share capital of
PRS.
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@rim@va;[ Subsidiaries

Place or country of
incorporation or

Issued and

Percentage of
issued capital/
registered capital

registration/ Class of paid up capital/ No. of held by
Name of companies operation shares  registered capital shares Company Subsidiary Principal activities
Y% %
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited Bermuda/ Ordinary HK$85,677,935 856,779,352 423 79 Investment holding
(listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Hong Kong Limited)

Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$143,085,000 572,340,000 100 —  Marketing, installation
and maintenance of
lifts, escalators and

air-conditioning
systems, supply and
servicing of power
ecuipment and
industrial equipment

Chevalier Singapore Holdings Limited** Singapore Ordinary $$22,500,000 112,500,000 71 —  Marketing, installation

(listed on the Mainboard of the and maintenance of lifts
Singapore Exchange Securities and escalators
Trading Limited)

Chevalier {Insurance Brokers) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 — Insurance brokerage

Limited
Chevalier Insurance Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000,000 100,000,000 00 —  Insurance underwriting
Chevalier {Aluminium Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 — 100 Supply and installation
Engineering) Limited Deferred HK$2 2 — —  of aluminium building
materials and
curtain walls
Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 100 Supply and installation
Engineering) Hong Kong of aluminium building
Limited** materials and
curtain walls
Chevalier (Business Machines) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 50.4 Trading of
Limited telecommunication
equipment
Chevalier (Building Supplies & Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 — 100 Supply znd installation
Engineering) Limited Deferred HK$2 ) — — of building materials
and trading of forklifc
trucks and generators
Chevalier {Computer) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 — 50.4 Trading
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T’?"iﬂdl}zﬂ[ Subsidiaries

Place or country of

incorporation or

[ssued and

Percentage of
issued capital/
registered capital

Chevalier International Hcldings Limited

registraticn/ Class of paid up capital/ No. of held by
Name of companies operation sharas  registered capital shares  Company Subsidiary Principal activities
% %
Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Hong Kong Crdinary HK$26,900,000 26,900,000 — 100 Electrical and
Limited mechanical contractor
Chevalier (Envirotech; Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9, 100,000 9,100,000 — 100 Environmental
engineering
Chevalier {Internet) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 504 Provision of internet
services
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Keng Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 — 50.4 Trading of computer
and office equipment
Chevalier {O4) Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 50.4 Maintenance services
Chevalier (Satellink) Limited Hong Kong Q-dinary HK$2 2 — 504 Installation of satellite
antennae
Chevalier {Tc!ePoint) Lumited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 — 50.4 Trading and
telecommunication
services
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000 15,000 — 100 Travel agency
Chevalier Autornobiles Irz.** Canada Common C$100 100 — 100 Sales and servicing of
stocks automobiles
Chevalier Chrysler Ing.** Canada Common Csint 200 — 100 Sales and servicing of
stocks automobiles
Chevalier Mozar Cars Inc ** Canaca Common C$100 100 — 100 Sales and servicing of
stocks automobiles
Chevalier Development +§) Pre Ltd*™ Singapore Ordinary S92 500,000 1,500,000 — 714 Property investment
Chevalier Dougguan Hotel Co | Ltd.** PRC Not RMB40,000,000 Not — 100 Hotel operation
applicable applicable
Chevalier Engineering (S. Pre Lid** Singapors Ordinary $$500,000 500,000 — 71 Installation and
maintenance of lifts
Chevalier [nternational (LISA: usa Common US$3,900,000 3,900,000 — 100 Grocery trading
Inc.** stocks
Chevalier Lifts Engineering PRC Not RMB10,886,572 Not — 100 Installation and
(Shenzhen} Co., Ltd.** applicable applicable maintenance of lifts
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CPrincgva[ Subsidiaries

Place or country of

incorporation or Issued and

Percentage of
issued rapital/
registered capital

registration/ Class of paid up capital/ No. of held by
Name of companies operation shares  registered capital shares Company Subsidiary Principal activities
% %
Chevalier OA {China) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 50.4 Trading of
computer and
office equipment
Chevalier iTech (S) Pte Ltd*™ Singapore Ordinary 5$500,000 500,000 — 50.4 Trading of
computer and
office equipment
Chevalier OA (Thailand) Thailand Ordinary BAHT3,980,000 39,800 — 50.4 T-ading of
Limited**# Preference BAHT 1,020,000 10,200 — 235 computer and
office equipment
Chevalier Office Automation PRC Not HK$1,800,000 Not — 504 Provision of
Services (Shenzhen) Company applicable applicable maintenance
Limited** services
Chevalier Shop Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 50.4 Trading of
telecommunication
equipment
Chevalier Telecom (Thailand) Thailand Ordinary BAHTS5,000,000 50,000 — 50.4 Trading of
Limited** telecommunication
equipment
Companhia de Elevadores Macau Ordinary Patacas100,000 100 — 100 Installation and
Chevalier (Macau) Limited ** maintenanze of lifts
Elevator Parts Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HK$400,000 40,000 — 100 Marketing, installation
Company Limited and maintenance of lifts
Gold Express Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 — 100 Property development
Limited** Deferred HK$2 2 — —
Goldyork [nvestment Limited*™* Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 — 100 Property irvestment
Good Process Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$149 149 — 100 Property development
Deferred HK$51 51 — —
Coodkent Limited** Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 — 100 Property development
' Deferred HK$2 2 — —
Lucky Fine Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 50.4 Property investment
and share dealing
Jivjiang Chevalier Hotel & Travel Co. Ltd ** PRC Not RMB25,000,000 Not — 100 Hotel operation
applicable applicable

Annual Report 2000 — 2001
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Principal Subsidiaries
- J

Percentage of

| Place or country of issued capital/
incorporatior or Issued and registered capital
"‘ registration/ Class of paid up capital/ No. of held by
i Name of companies operation shares  registered capital shares Company Subsidiary Principal activities
! % %
i
i Macleh i Chevalier) Lid ** Cinada Common C$10,100 10,100 — 100 Property investment
i stocks and hotel operation
[
i Oriental Sharp Limited Hong Kang Ordinary HK$149 149 — 100 Property development
} Deferred HK 351 51 — -
|
| Rich Fortress Limited Hong Kong Ord:nary HK$100 100 — 100 Property management
l‘ Deferred HK$1,002 1,002 — —
|
| Sup Aswin Limited™* Thailend Ordirary BAHT 15,000,000 150,000 — 50.4 Property investment
i
‘ Talent Luck Limiteo Hong Kong Ordinary HK$149 149 — 100 Property development
! Deferred HKS$51 51 — —
i
I
: 757040 Cntario Limitec* Canada Common C$10 10 — 100 Property investment
78 ] | stacks
Chevalier (Development) Hong Kang Ordinary HK$200 2 — 100 Investment holding and
Company Limited™* Deferred HK$400,000 4,000 — — property investment
|
I
; Chonmain Developmen: Hong Keng Ordinary HK$100 100 — 100 Investment holding
Limited

f
| Forth Bridge Company Hong Keng Ordinary HK$20 2 — 100 Property investment
} Limited Deferred HK$ 10,000 1,000 — —_
|
i Futex Development Limited** Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 1,000 — 100 Property investment
! and development
|
| ‘ ,
} GJ (Develoament) Company Hong kong Ordinary HK$20 2 — 100 Property investment
N; Limited®” Deferred HK$200,000 20,000 — —
I
i
! Lac Kar lavestment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 — 100 Investment holding and
1 Company Limited property investment
j Macont Developmeats [nc ** Canada Common C$1,000 1,000 — 100 Property investment
| stocks
i
| Matterhorn Properties The British Virgin Ordinary US$1 ] —— 100 Property investment
I
j Limired lslands/Hong Kong
‘; Open City Limited Hong Kang Grdinary HK$ 100,000 100,000 — 100 Property investment
|
: Peak Gain Limited*” Hong Koang Ordinary HK$20 2 — 100 Property investment

|
1
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Principal Subsidiaries

Place or country of

incorporation or

Issued and

Perceatage of
issued capital/

registered capital

registration/ Class of paid up capital/ No. of heid by
Name of companies operation shares  registered capital shares Company Subsidiary Principal activities
% %
Proud Rich Limited** Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 — 100 Property investment
Deferred HK$20 2 — — and trading of
securities
Shanghai Chon Main PRC Not RME132,502,536  Not applicable — 80 Property development
Real Estate Development applicable
Co., Limited**
Union Pearl Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 100 Property investment
Limited and trading
Winfield Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 — 100 Property investment
Limited**
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Co., PRC Not RMB74,142,781 Not — 70 Hotel operation
Led.* applicable applicable
YCC (Development) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 — 100 Property iavestment
Company Limited** Deferred HK$20 2 — —
# Every four preference shares of this company carry one vote and all such shares bave no right to participate in the distribution of surplus

assets in case of winding-up or profits in excess of 10% for any one financial year.

**  Not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Notes:

a. All deferred shares are non-voting.
b, None of the subsidiaries bad any loan capital outstanding at the end of the year.

Annual Report 2000 — 2001

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

&)




‘_P/rincl;va[ “Associates

Place or
country of

incerporation

Percentage of
issued capital/

registered

Name of or registration/ Class of capital held by
associates operation shares heid ~ Company  Subsidiary Principal activities
% %
Chevalier (Civil Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary — 35 Civil engineering
Limited
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordinary — 34 Building construction
Company Limited
Chevalier Construction Bermuda/ Ordinary 28.3 6.7 [nvestment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong
(listed on The Stock
Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited)
Chevalier Construction Hong Kong Ordinary - 35 Building construction
(Hong Kong) Limited
Chevatier Civil Engineering Hang Kong Ordinary — 35 Civil engineering
(Honz Kong) Limited
Chevalier MLD Leasing Hang Kong Ordinary — 50 Finance, leasing and
Company Limited** hire purchase
financing
Preussag Pipe Rehabititation Hong Kong Ordinary — 45 Design and construction
Hong Kong Limited for flushing water,
cooling water, gas,
sewages and
drainage pipelines
United O. A. Limited** Hang Kang Ordinary —_ 20.5 Trading of office

** Not qudited by Deloitte Touche Tobmatsa,

equipment

All the associates are corporate and the Group's entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these associates is in proportion to its

ownership interest.

Chevalier Internatioriaf Holcings Limited
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’.P’m’nc@va[ fioim‘(y Controlled Entities

Place or Percentage of
country of issued capital/
incorporation Form of registered capital
Name of or registration/ Class of business held by Principal
jointly controlled entities operation shares held structure subsidiary activities
%
Berville Investment Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary Corporate 50 Property
PRC development
Fairwide Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary Corporate 50 Property
PRC development

The Group's entitlement to share in the profit or loss of these jointly controlled entities is in proportion to its

ownership interest.
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Extracts of Financial Statements of A ?rinc@va[ Associate

The following information is extracted from the 2001 published financial statements of Chevalier Construction

Holdings Limited, a principal assoziate:

Consolidated Income Statement

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2001

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross (loss) profit
Other revente
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

(Loss) profit from operations befere finance costs

Finance costs

(Loss) profit from operations

Gain on dispcsal of interest in an associate
Share of results of associates

Share of resulis of jointly controlled entities

{Loss) profit before taxation

Taxation

{Loss) profit before minority interests

Minority interests

Net (loss) profit for the year
Dividends

{Loss) earnings per share

Basic

Chevalier International Holldings Limited

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,226,463 2,390,937
(1,237,353) (2,359,977)
(10,890) 30,960
2,874 3,290
(20,180) (22,074)
(1,632) (2,248)
(29,828) 9,928
(1,454) (5.626)
(31,282) 4,302
2,284 —
2,314 3,205
(518) (231)
(27,202) 7,276
(542) 547
(27,744) 7,823
87 (5)
(27,657) 7,818
(11.66 cents) 3.41 cents
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. Extracts of Financial Statements of Z %fiml;m[ Zssociate

g

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As At 31st March, 2001

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 19.318 21,590
Interests in associates 6,790 24,442
Interests in jointly controlled entities 9,688 10,190
: 35,796 56,222
Current assets
Amounts due from customers for contract work 175,084 190,198
Inventories, at cost 5.340 10,444
Trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments 606,308 630,518
Retention money receivable 188,575 206,977
Amounts due from associates — 1,800
Tax refundable 75 215
Cash and bank balances 19.570 66,195
! 994,952 1,106,347
3 Current liabilities
Amounts due to customers for contract work 199,584 258,299
1 Creditors, deposits and accruals 557,333 630,662
; Bills payable 114 —
Retention money payable 178,674 186,320
Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year 359 359
Secured short-term bank loans 32.000 —_
Unsecured bank overdraft 2 —
968,066 1,075,640
Net current assets 26,886 30,707
Total assets less current liabilities 62.682 86,929
Non-current liability
Obligations under finance leases
— due after one year 60 419
Minority interests 365 452
62,257 86,058
Capital and reserves
Share capital 24,900 22,900
Reserves 37,357 63,158
62,257 86,058
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Ceneral Meering of the Shareholders of the Company will be held at 22/F., Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road. Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on Friday, 2tst September, 2001 at 10:40 a.m_ for the following purposes:

As Ordinary Business

1.

2.

3.

4.

To receive and conside- the audited fine ncial statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the vear ended 31st March, 2001,
To declare a firal dividend.
To re-elect reiring Directors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

To re-appcint Auditors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

And As Special Business, to consider and, if thoughrt fit, pass with or without modification the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

J.

6.

THAT

{a) subject to paragraph (¢) below, the exercise By the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and cptions which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

b) th approval in paragraph (z) shall authoiize the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements
and options which might recquire the exaraise of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capiial allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to
an option or otherwise) by the Diractors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph {a), otherwise than pursuant to (i) a
Rights [ssue (as hereinafter defined) or (1i) 1he exercise of subscription rights under any share option scheme of the Company or (iii) an
issuz of shares as scrip dividends pursuans vo the Bye-laws of the Company from time to rime, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of th: Company in issue as at the date of passing of this Resolution and the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and

'd) for he purposes of this Resclution and the Resolution 6.
"Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

(i1 the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-laws of the
Company or any apglicable law of Bermuda to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation ot this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in Ceneral
Meeting.

"Rights Issue” means the allotment, issue or grant of shares pursuant to an offer {open for a period fixed by the Directors of the Company)
mzde to shareholders or any class thereof on the Register of Members of the Company on a fixed record date pro rata to their then
holdings of such shares or zlass thereof {subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors of the Company may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements of having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognis=d regulatery body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong)."

‘THAT

1a) subject to paragraph (b) below the exercice by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as defined in Resolution 5{d)
above) all powers of the Company to repurchase its shares in the capital of the Company, subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and requirements of the Rules Geverning the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as amended from
time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved; and

1b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (z) above during the
Relevant Period shall not excesd 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of this
Resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) above shall be limited accordingly.”

“THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution
set out in Resolution 5 be and is hereby extendad by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company which may be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted pursuant to such general mandate the
aggregate nominal amount of share in the capital of the Company, repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary
Resolution set out in Resolution 6, provided that such amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of this Resolution”’

By Order of the Board
KAN Ka Han
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30th July, 2001

Notes

A member entitied to attend and vote at the meetiny convencd by the above notice is entitled to appoint one or mare proxies to attend and, in the event of a poll , to vote in bis stead
A proxy reed not be a momber of the Company

In arder to he valid, a form of proxy, tagether with the pawer of attorney or other authority (if any), must be deposited at the Company's Branch Share Registrars in Hong
Kong, STANDARD REGISTRARS LIMITED of s/F, Wing Ou Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting

The Register of Members of the Company wilt be closed jrom Vionday, 17th September, 2001 to Friday, 21st September, 2001, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of <hare: will be effected. In order to qualify for the propesed final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificares must be lodged with
the Compuny's Eranch Share Registrars in Henyd Konyg, STANDARD REGISTRARS LIMITED not later than 4.00 p.m. on Friday, 14th September, 2001
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